
 
 
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA 

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 
www.flintshire.gov.uk 

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR 
Ffôn 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4 

www.siryfflint.gov.uk 
 

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English 
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg 

To: Councillors: Aaron Shotton, Kevin Jones, Dave 
Cowans, Michael Priestley, David Smith, Eryl 
Williams, John Wynn Jones, William Gareth 
Roberts, Alex Aldridge and R.G. Parry    
 

 
CS/NG 

 
24 July, 2012 

 
Ceri Owen 01352 702350 

ceri.owen@flintshire.gov.uk 
 

 
 
Dear Sir / Madam 
 
A meeting of the NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE will be 
held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, RUSSEL HOUSE, CHURTON ROAD, RHYL, 
LL18 3DP on WEDNESDAY, 1ST AUGUST, 2012 at 10.30 AM to consider the 
following items. 
 

Yours faithfully 
 

 
 

Democracy & Governance Manager 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1 APOLOGIES  
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 

3 ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR  
 

4 APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

5 MATTERS ARISING FROM PREVIOUS MEETING  

Public Document Pack



6 PROGRESS REPORT (SO REPORT) (Pages 7 - 10) 
 

7 RIR - RISK STATUS UPDATE (SP REPORT) (Pages 11 - 38) 
 

8 COMMUNICATIONS UPDATE (VERBAL UPDATE AT MEETING)  
 

9 LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 - TO 
CONSIDER THE EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC (Pages 39 - 
40) 

 The following item is considered to be exempt by virtue of Paragraph(s) 14 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 

 The report would reveal details of proposed bids for the contract i.e. business 
details.  The contract process is still underway and disclosure of the 
information should not be made until after the contract has been awarded. 
 

10 REFINED ISDS EVALUATION REPORT (SP REPORT ACCOMPANIED BY 
A PRESENTATION BY THE PROJECT TEAM AND ALSO EXTERNAL 
ADVISORS) (Pages 41 - 62) 

 

11 ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

 



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    
 

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Committee held in the Council Chamber, 
Bodlondeb, Conwy on Friday, 16 March 2012 at 10.30 am 

  
 PRESENT 
 Councillor Eryl Williams – Denbighshire County Council (Chair) 
 Councillor Mike Priestley – Conwy County Borough Council 
 Councillor Meirion Hughes – Conwy County Borough Council 
 Councillor Arwel Pierce – Gwynedd County Council 
 Councillor Sharon Frobisher – Denbighshire County Council 
 Councillor Neville Phillips – Flintshire County Council 
 Councillor Nancy Matthews – Flintshire County Council 
 Alex Aldridge – Commissioner for the Isle of Anglesey County Council 
  
 ALSO PRESENT 
 Conwy County Borough Council 
 Andrew Kirkham and Sian Harland 
  
 Denbighshire County Council 
 Steve Parker  
  
 Gwynedd County Council 
 Dilwyn Williams 
  
 Flintshire County Council 
 Colin Everett, Kerry Feather, Louise Pedreschi 
  
 Isle of Anglesey County Council 
 Meirion Edwards 
  
 North Wales Residual Waste Treatment Partnership 
 Stephen Penny, Steffan Owen and Karen Powell 
  
 Local Partnerships  
 Hazel Nickless 
  
 AMEC 
 Jonathan Bebb and Ian Cromie 
  
 Grant Thornton UK 
 Saeefar Rehman 
  
11. APOLOGIES 
  
 Apologies for absence were received from Carl Longland (Flintshire 

County Council) and Hugh Roberts (Local Partnerships). 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



  
12. MINUTES 
  
 The minutes of the meeting of the North Wales Residual Waste 

Treatment Project held on 27 January 2012 were submitted for 
approval. 
 
RESOLVED- 

That the minutes of the meeting of the North Wales 
Residual Waste Treatment Project held on 27 January 2012 
be approved as a correct record.  

  
13. MATTERS ARISING 
  
 In relation to Minute No. 5 (Progress Report), Members were advised 

that the Notice of Motion, which raised concerns at any proposal for a 
residual waste treatment plant being sited on Deeside, put forward on 
the agenda of the Flintshire County Council Meeting on 31 January 
2012 had been withdrawn. 

  
14. CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENT 
  
 The Chairman announced that he had been approached by the BBC 

with regard to the Welsh Government’s agenda on waste.  In turn the 
Chairman had given the reporter the contact number for Jasper 
Roberts, Head of Waste Policy Division in the Welsh Government. 

  
15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  
 None. 
  
16. PROGRESS REPORT 
  
 The Project Manager presented the progress report and stated that 

the project was progressing within budget and the final expenditure for 
2010/11 was £889,133 with a profiled spend for this financial year of 
£994,821.   
 
In relation to the press coverage Flintshire County Council had 
received, it was noted that the petition against a site in Deeside had 
over 6,000 signatures, which included signatories from neighbouring 
areas.  Once the final stage of the bidding process had commenced, 
Flintshire would enter into a deeper debate with concerned residents. 
 
RESOLVED- 
 That the content of the report be noted. 

  
 
 
 

Page 2



17. RISK REGISTER REPORT – RISK STATUS UPDATE 
  
 The Project Director presented the Risk Register Report, which 

highlighted some of the amendments that had been made to reflect 
the current understanding of the risk and mitigation measures that are 
in place. 
 
The Register would be updated once the Joint Committee had made 
its decision on whether the scheme would be rail/road based. 
 
RESOLVED- 

That the content of the report be noted. 
  
18. COMMUNICATION UPDATE 
  
 The Project Manager updated Members with regard to the 

communication matters concerning the NWRWTP.  
 
It was noted that with regard to publicising the decision on the 
rail/road aspect of the scheme, the Project Team considered that it 
would be prudent not to release a press release due to the 
forthcoming Local Government Elections.  However, it was the view of 
the Project Board that the Project Team should answer any press 
enquiries relating to the rail/road decision, with a wider announcement 
in July 2012.  Members were advised that a response to the decision 
would be circulated to all Members of the Committee to enable them 
to respond generically to any press enquiries.  
 
A Member suggested that archived photographs of the previous steel 
works, which was situated on the site at Deeside, could be used to 
illustrate that the area had always been an industrial site, despite the 
view that it was now greenfield. 
 
The Chief Executive of Flintshire County Council advised that there 
had been positive discussion at the meeting with Connah’s Quay 
Town Council with regard to the scheme. 
 
RESOLVED- 

(a) That the Communications Update report be noted. 
 
(b) That the intended approach to publicise the rail/road 

decision be adopted. 
  
19. NEW WASTE HIERARCHY GUIDANCE 
  
 The Project Director presented a report on the new Waste Hierarchy 

Guidance from the Welsh Government (WG). 
 
 
 

Page 3



The term ‘Waste Hierarchy’ had been used to define a rank order of 
priority for the management of waste, with final disposal to landfill 
being at the bottom of the Waste Hierarchy. 
 
In January 2012, the WG published a new document called “Guidance 
on Applying the Waste Hierarchy”, which provided further detail on 
how the Waste Hierarchy should be applied in Wales.  In particular, 
there was guidance on where different residual waste treatment 
technologies lie within the Waste Hierarchy. 
 
Members were requested to note that the published waste hierarchy 
set out that following the prevention of residual waste, that one of the 
best environmentally performing technologies to treat this material 
would be in the form of high efficiency Energy from Waste (EfW) with 
Incinerator Bottom Ash recovery/recycling.  Other forms of waste 
treatment, such as mechanical biological treatment and mechanical 
heat treatment were shown to be less desirable. 
 
RESOLVED- 

That the content of the report be noted. 
  
 EXEMPT ITEMS: LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972, SECTION 

100A AND SCHEDULE 12A (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) 
 RESOLVED- 

That the Public and Press be excluded from the meeting 
under the provisions of Section 100A of the above Act during 
consideration of the following item as it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 14 
of Part 4 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that in all the 
relevant circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.  

  
20. OUTCOME OF ROAD – RAIL ASSESSMENT 
  
 The Project Director reminded Members that the Joint Committee had 

consistently expressed their desire to explore the option of utilising rail 
for transporting waste, as part of any future solution of the ongoing 
procurement process.  
 
Members were therefore presented with a report, that set out the key 
findings from the assessment, which was carried out on both road and 
rail solution submissions made by participants in the procurement 
process. 
 
Presentations on the Environmental, Technical, Financial and Legal 
aspects of a road/rail solution were given to the Joint Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 4



 
The risks associated with the road/rail solution were discussed at 
length and the following issues were highlighted:- 
 

• Planning consent for rail waste transfer sites 

• Timescales for bidders and the Project Team to progress 
discussions with Network Rail and others for  a road/rail 
solution; it was suggested that a time limit of 6 months was 
reasonable 

• Mitigation of risks 

• Costs of a rail/road solution 

• Best Practical Environmental Option as a planning consideration 

• Bulking of waste 

• Public consultation outcome 

• Environmental benefits of road only vs Road/Rail 
 
RESOLVED- 
(a) That the combined road/rail option should form the basis 

of solutions being developed for the NWRWTP because:- 

• The costs for rail are less than the affordability target and 
well below the “Base Case” for the Reference Solution in 
the approved Outline Business Case. 

• Rail has better environmental performance than a road 
based solution for the regional project as a whole. 

• The bidders are directed to include within their bids 
solutions for waste bulking and road transportation to 
railhead points that seeks to minimise travel by all  partner 
authorities waste collection service vehicles. 

• Achievement of planning consent at the key facility 
remains a significant risk to the project. The selection of 
rail with its improved environmental performance will 
assist in reducing planning risk as it will be easier to 
demonstrate that the Best Practicable Environmental 
Option is being proposed. 

 
(b) That the appropriate consents and agreements from the 

statutory undertakers and other parties are to be secured 
where practicable within 6 months (by 27 September) for 
the Joint Committee to be assured of the logistical 
feasibility of the rail option within the project timetable, on 
the assumption that the combined road/rail option will 
continue to be financially viable in the final bids. A road 
only option as outlined in paragraphs 3.48 and 3.49 of the 
report is held as the reserve option should the preferred 
road/rail option prove not to be feasible. 
  

18. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
  
 None.    

Page 5



 

Page 6



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt      

 

  

 
 
NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE TREATMENT PROJECT  
PROGRESS REPORT 
 

  
 
Date : 1st August 2012 
 
Period: 7th March 2012 to 23rd July 2012 
 
 
 
 
To procure a sustainable waste management solution for the 5 local 
authorities in North Wales (Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire, Gwynedd and 
Isle of Anglesey) that will assist with the reduction in greenhouse gas 
emissions from landfill and will minimise the tonnage of waste residue sent to 
landfill thus ensuring that the authorities avoid Landfill Allowance Scheme 
(LAS) infraction penalties and meet National Waste Strategy targets. 
 
 
 
 

Overall Project 
Status 

 

Amber  Revised ISDS bids evaluated. Challenge sessions held 
with legal, financial and technical groups, and final 
evaluation completed – see item 9 on agenda. 
 

 
 
 

Budget status  

Green Expenditure for Quarter 1 of 2012/13 (April – June) was 
£228,460. Budget for the same period was £217,106. This 
equates to £11,354 over budget for the period. 

 
 

Status Meaning 

Green There are no problems; all is progressing well and to plan 

Amber There are some minor/ less significant problems. Action is 
needed in some areas but other parts are progressing 
satisfactory 

Red There are significant problems and urgent and decisive 
action is needed. 

NORTH WALES RESIDUAL WASTE JOINT COMMITTEE 

PROJECT SUMMARY 

PROJECT STATUS 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt      

 

  

 
 
 
 
 

ID Activity RAG 
status 

Comments Forecast Actual 

74 Participants 
informed of 
partnership’s 
decisions on road 
/ road-rail, and 
invited to submit 
refinements to 
their ISDS 
submissions in 
the light of 
decision 

Amber  Mid March 
2012 

Complete 

75 Submission of 
Refined ISDS by 
participants 

Amber  April 2012 Complete 

76 Refined ISDS 
submissions 
evaluated  

Amber See item 8 on the 
agenda 

May / June 
2012 

Complete  

78 The second IAA 
(IAA2) to be 
commenced 

Green This to commence 
once CFT evaluated 
and likely preferred 
bidder  is known (and 
the likely contract 
structure is more 
certain). 

Spring 
2013 

 

83 Report back to 
public and 
respondents with 
results of 
consultation  
 

Green This to be done later 
in project timetable 
following discussion 
at the Joint 
Committee in 
January 2012 

Autumn 
2012 

 

91 Seek legal advice 
following letters 
received about 
the presence of 
one of the bidders 
in the 
procurement 
process 

Green Awaiting outcome of 
ISDS Evaluation if 
bidder in question 
proceeds in the 
procurement 
process. 

August 
2012 

 

92 Prepare press 
release and 
process for 
informing the 

Green Decision publicised 
in Flintshire local 
press  

late March 
2012 

Complete 

PROJECT UPDATE – Activities due for completion 7th March 2012 to 23rd July 2012 
(and highlighted longer term actions). 

Page 8



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt      

 

  

public of road / 
rail decision 

93 Prepare 
comprehensive 
information pack 
for Members and 
public to be used 
when it is 
appropriate to 
discuss 
technology and 
site proposals 

Green See item 8 on the 
agenda. 

Autumn 
2012 

 

94 Prepare and 
schedule 
necessary events 
/ meetings / drop 
in sessions 
regarding 
announcement 
(see 97 below) 

Green See item 8 on 
agenda.  

Autumn 
2012 

 

95 Pre CFT 
Documents 
drafting 

Green Project team and 
advisors to draft CFT 
documentation 

November
2012 

 

96 Post ISDS 
dialogue sessions 
with remaining 
two participants 

Green Sessions organised 
for August onwards. 

August to 
October 
2012 

 

97 De-brief 
unsuccessful 
bidder 

Green Scheduled for 
August. 

August 
2012 

 

98 Draft readiness to 
close dialogue 
report 

Green Project team draft 
report for PB & JC 
relating to  readiness 
to close dialogue  
 

Sep 2012  

99 Project team 
session to review 
project risk 
register ready for 
submission to 
WG as part of 
WG readiness to 
close dialogue 
review 

Green  Oct / Nov 
2012 

 

 
 
  
KEY RISKS – See item 7 on this agenda. 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 1 

 
 
REPORT TO:  NWRWTP JOINT COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:  1 AUGUST 2012 
 
REPORT BY:   PROJECT DIRECTOR 
 
SUBJECT:    RISK REGISTER REPORT 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
  
1.1. The members of the NWRWTP Joint Committee have requested that they 

are provided with an update of the risk register at each meeting of the 
Joint Committee. 

1.2. This report will highlight some of the amendments to the risk register that 
have been made to reflect the current understanding of risks and 
mitigation measures that are in place. 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1. The Risk Register will require continual update throughout the project.  

 
3. CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1. There is one new risk identified this reporting period. Following the 

decision of Joint Committee at its meeting in March 2012 a new project 
delivery risk was identified - PD21 (Network Rail approvals are not 
secured to allow delivery of a rail based transport solution). It was agreed 
that a review of progress would be made in September to October 2012 to 
see if key Network rail approvals had been secured.  

 
3.2. There have been some changes to other existing risks in this reporting 

period to reflect the progress being made in the procurement process. 
These are :- 

 

• Finance F5 (bid prices being outside of the affordability envelope) where the 
risks have been reduced to reflect the current competitive pricing being 
offered to the Partnership, 

• Project delivery PD4 (Potential bidders do not bid due to the prescriptive 
requirements) where risks have been reduced to reflect the fact that 3 fully 
comprehensive ISDS submissions have been received. 

• Project delivery PD5 (Potential bidders do not bid as volumes of waste are 
too small). As above where risks have been reduced to reflect the fact that 3 
fully comprehensive ISDS submissions have been received based on 
Partnerships waste flow model. 

• Procurement Strategy P13 (Technological solutions offered are not 
commissionable within Landfill Allowance Scheme (LAS) infraction 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 2 

timescales. Risk reduced to reflect latest LAS positions as set out within the 
Partnership ISDS waste flow model and to reflect the projected service 
commencement dates that protect partner authority from LAS liabilities. 

 
 
3.3. The Top 9 risks (after controls have been put in place) are shown in 

appendix 1. 
 
3.4. The changes this period are shown in appendix 2. 
 
3.5. The risk register will continue to be reviewed by the Project Director and 

reported to the Joint Committee at future meetings. 
 
4. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
4.1. That the Joint Committee note the updated risk register for the project.  
 
 
5. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1. Not applicable 
 
 
6. ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT 
 
6.1.   None 
 
 
7. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 
7.1.  Not applicable 
 
 
8. EQUALITIES IMPACT 
 
8.1.  Not applicable 
 
9. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1. Not applicable 
 
10. CONSULTATION REQUIRED 
 
10.1. Not applicable 
 
11. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN 
 
11.1.  Not applicable 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT 1985 
 

Page 12



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 3 

Background Documents: 
 
None 
 

Contact Officer: Stephen Penny  NWRWTP 

Page 13



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 4 

Appendix 1 Top (Red) risks and issues  

Additional explanatory notes

Impact L'hood Overall Already in Place
Who is 

Managing
Not in Place (Proposed)

Who will 

Manage
Impact L'hood Overall

Policy & regulatory Risk – Change in WG objectives / regulations

PO1

WG changes financial 

support available for 

residual waste treatment 

projects due to WG 

affordability / budgetary 

constraints in the current 

economic climate

Residual waste treatment 

projects become less 

affordable for partnership 

and each partner authority
5 4 20

Project Team to monitor WG positions in terms of 

budget availability and lobby at ministerial level if 

there are indications that proposed funding is to 

be reduced
PD 5 3 15 Ongoing Feb-12

PO2 

WG Environmental policy 

and objectives change

Project is now 

inappropriate
4 5 20

Keep in close contact with WG to ensure potential 

policy changes that may impact on the project are 

identified early. The Project team have developed 

and submitted a partnership consultation 

response (approved by the PB and Joint 

Committee) highlighting the potential impact of 

such a target on the project and to ensure WG 

addresses how any such target is related to 

potential household numbers of population growth 

rates that authorities may be subject to in future.  

PD 4 3 12 Ongoing Feb-12

WG have indicated in the finalMunicipal Sector Plan (MSP) that 

they may adopt a waste minimisation target for MSW with a 

negative growth rate (reduction) of  -1.2% pa.  The WG MSP does 

not  take any account of individual or partner authority HH or 

population growth rates. The Partnership has however received 

guidance from WG that the Partnership is free to make its own 

assessments about future waste arisings and as a result planning 

risk is now moderated. WG has now published guidance on the 

Waste Heirarchy. This is viewed by the project team as helpfull 

and will enable the Partnership to demonstrate how any solution 

that comes forward ranks in the waste heirarchy.

PO4

Change in legislation 

or guidance either at 

European, National or 

Regional/Local level

Could require revisit 

of preferred solution, 

possible termination 

of project, excessive 

LAS compliance 

costs

4 5 20

Keep in close contact with WG to ensure potential 

policy changes that may impact on the project are 

identified early.

PD

Lobby WG and liaise with 

WLGA on this issue. 

PD 4 3 12 Ongoing May-12

WG have now clarified the position on use of IBA 

(Bottom ash) so the likelihood of policy change in 

relation to this has reduced. The Project team will 

review the now published (july 2012) Collections and 

infrastrucutre plan to see how affects overall risks.

Finance & Affordability

F15

Partner authorities fail 

to make financial 

plans to support  

additional recycling 

and composting 

services to meet 

"front end" increased 

recycling levels that 

are required

Failure to meet WG 

"front end" recycling 

and composting 

targets with 

increased residual 

waste arisings as a 

result.

4 4 16

Partner authorities to develop long term funding 

plans to support enhanced front end recycling and 

composting services.

Partner 

Authorities
4 3 12 Ongoing May-12

WG are encouraging authorities in Wales to enter into a "change 

programme" where WG will offer assistance to Las to work 

together and improve "front end" recycling and collections 

services.

IDENTIFYING THE RISK or ISSUE MANAGING THE RISK or ISSUE

How the risk will be managed and controlled Residual risk after management

Impln Date Review Date Closure DateID
Risk / Issue (i.e.: Threat to 

the Project)
Consequence

Current Assessment

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 14



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 5 

Appendix 1 Top (Red) risks and issues (continued) 
 
 

Additional explanatory notes

Impact L'hood Overall Already in Place
Who is 

Managing
Not in Place (Proposed)

Who will 

Manage
Impact L'hood Overall

Communication & stakeholders – failure to proactively engage with key stake holders leading to delays and lack of public support for the proposed solution.

CO4

Pressure from lobby 

groups/public against the 

preferred solution and 

location.

Alternative solution/site 

has to be sought, 

increased project 

development costs, delays 

to project delivery 

programme, excessive 

LAS costs, impact on 

Partner Councils 

reputation

4 5 20

Communication and Engagement Strategy drafted 

and agreed in draft form by Communication 

Officer group. To be "live" document and therefore 

updated when necessary.

PM Alternative site work will 

continue during early stages of 

procurement process.

PD 4 4 16 Ongoing May-12

National campaigners' engaging with local community councils 

and local communities in attempt to build opposition to potential 

solutions.

Planning and permitting  -ability to secure successful planning and permitting outcome for solution

PS5 

Suitable sites are not in 

council ownership to 

support development of the 

solution

Project delayed whilst 

suitable sites are secured

5 3 15

Project team have identified sites that could be 

suitable for location of both the waste transfer 

stations and residual waste treatment facility(s)

PD

Continue to monitor potentially  

suitable new sites for the 

location of facilities .

PD 5 3 15 Ongoing May-12

PS14

The recent issue of the 

draft Collections, 

Infrastructure and Markets 

Sector Plan (CIM) by WG 

has led to uncertaninty as 

to the status of the existing 

Regional Waste Plan 

(RWP).  Thus the RWP 

may be given reduced 

weight in determination of 

a planning application for 

waste facilities. A policy 

vaccum may therefore 

exist if this is not 

addressed by WG.

Unsuccessfull 

planning application
4 4 16

Project team and north wales regional waste 

planning team engaging with WG on this issue to 

ensure that the final issued version of Collections, 

Infrastructure and Markets Sector Plan (CIM) does 

not leave a planning "policy vacuum". Regional 

Planing team and WG planing teams engaged 

with WG Waste Policy section to seek required 

ammendments to draft CIM

PD 4 3 12 Ongoing May-12

WG's published draft  Collections, Infrastructure and Markets 

Sector Plan (CIM) indicates that RWP's will be replaced but with 

no indication as to timetable for replacement. The Project team 

understand that the CIM's pubilciation is now delayed until early 

2012.

Wastes

W3

Composition of waste is 

different from that 

anticipated (poor data, 

policy changes, changes in 

collection practices)

Performance is 

below required level, 

excessive LAS 

compliance costs

3 5 15

Waste composition to be monitored during 

procurement and data shared at Competitive 

Dialogue to inform solution.  All Wales Waste 

composition analysis has been carried out by WG 

through WRAP study has provided a good data 

set. Performance of technology solution will be 

tested and understood as part of the procurement 

process to identify the ability of each solution to 

process wastes with changed composition.

PD 3 4 12 Ongoing May-12

PE1

Market/outlet is not 

available for outputs from 

the facility(s)

Increased project 

operational costs, 

increase in demand for 

landfill void

4 4 16

Ensure market deliverability demonstrated as part 

of procurement evaluation process.

PD 4 3 12 Ongoing May-12

Closure Date

Performance 

IDENTIFYING THE RISK or ISSUE MANAGING THE RISK or ISSUE

ID
Risk / Issue (i.e.: Threat to 

the Project)
Consequence

Current Assessment How the risk will be managed and controlled

Impln Date Review Date

Residual risk after management

P
age 15



NNWWRRWWTTPP  
NNoorrtthh  WWaalleess  RReessiidduuaall  WWaassttee  TTrreeaattmmeenntt  PPrroojjeecctt    

 

 6 

Appendix 2 Headline Changes this Period  

 

P
age 16



R
IR

A
 l
is

t 
o
f 

th
e
 t

h
re

a
ts

 t
o
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
s
e
.

R
e
v
is

io
n

s
 e

tc
.,

R
e
v
is

io
n

 D
a
te

V
e
rs

io
n

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

C
h

a
n

g
e
s

D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d

Y
/ 

N

1
7
.0

2
.0

9
V

2
.0

A
ll 

ri
s
k
s
 s

c
o
re

d
. 

R
e
m

o
v
e
d
 (

R
5
, 

P
4
) 

R
e
v
is

e
d
 (

T
2
, 

T
3
)

2
0
.0

5
.0

9
V

3
.0

T
4
 S

p
lit

 i
n
to

 t
w

o
 r

is
k
s
 (

A
 a

n
d
 B

).
 P

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 b

y
 

S
P

. 
S

o
m

e
 i
m

p
lim

e
n
a
ti
o
n
 d

a
te

s
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
te

s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

S
5
 W

R
A

P
 C

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 n

o
te

d
 b

y
 N

C

2
7
.0

7
.0

9
v
4
.0

N
e
w

 P
S

2
 a

n
d
 P

S
3
 r

a
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 r

is
k
. 

S
9
 n

o
w

 r
e
m

u
m

b
e
re

d
 a

s
 P

S
1
)

1
.9

.0
9

v
4
.1

N
e
w

 R
7
 a

n
d
 T

8
 a

d
d
e
d

1
4
.1

0
.0

9
v
4
.1

R
e
 w

o
rk

in
g

N

1
1
.1

1
.0

9
v
4
.2

R
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 r

is
k
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 o

f 
5
th

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 
A

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
ri
s
k
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

N

2
0
.0

2
.1

0
v
4
.3

R
is

k
s
 P

S
1
3
 a

n
d
 W

4
 a

d
d
e
d

Y

1
3
.0

4
.1

0
v
4
.4

U
p
d
a
te

s
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

re
c
e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
c
e
rt

a
in

 

ri
s
k
s
. 

R
is

k
s
 u

p
d
a
te

d
:-

 J
W

1
, 

P
D

2
, 

P
D

3
, 

P
2
, 

P
1
3
, 

T
1
8

Y

2
4
/0

5
/1

0
v
4
.5

u
p
d
a
te

d
 r

is
k
 P

S
5
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
 o

f 
n
o
t 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

 s
it
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 W

a
s
te

 t
ra

s
n
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o
n
s

Y

1
5
/0

8
/1

0
v
4
.6

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

to
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 v

4
.5

 -
 t

e
x
t 

c
o
lo

u
r 

c
h
a

n
g
e
s
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 f

ro
m

 r
e
d
 t

o
 b

la
c
k
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e
s
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

n
e
w

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 

s
in

c
e
 l
a
s
t 

re
p
o
rt

.
Y

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
: 

N
W

R
W

T
P

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
is

 o
n

ly
 v

a
li

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 d

a
y
 i

t 
w

a
s
 p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 a
n

d
 d

a
te

d

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

Page 17



R
IR

1
5
/0

9
/1

0
v
4
.7

ri
s
k
s
 P

D
1
3
,P

D
1
4
 &

 P
D

 1
7
 C

lo
s
e
d
 a

s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
. 

R
is

k
 P

S
1
1
 

c
lo

s
e
d
 a

s
 i
s
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

ri
s
k
 C

O
4
. 
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 P

D
1
5
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
. 

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 m

o
v
e
d
 t

o
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

s
o
m

e
 r

is
k
s
.

Y

1
4
/1

0
/1

0
v
4
.8

W
2
 r

is
k
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
n
d
 d

e
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 h

e
ld

 

a
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

b
o
a
rd

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 o

f 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

Y

0
9
/1

1
/1

0
v
4
.9

P
O

1
 a

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

is
k
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 W

A
G

 

fu
n
d
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
, 

N
e
w

 r
is

k
 F

1
4
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 W

A
G

 F
B

C
, 

F
1

5
 r

e
 

a
v
a
lia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fu

n
d
in

g
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 "
fr

o
n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

W
1
 a

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
le

c
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
te

is
 n

o
t 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

.
Y

1
4
/0

2
/1

1
v
4
.1

0
N

e
w

 P
D

 2
0
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
e
e
k
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

s
it
e
s
.

y

2
2
/0

2
/1

1
v
4
.1

1

P
D

 2
0
 a

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 P

O
2
 d

u
e
 t

o
 i
s
s
u
e
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
W

A
G

 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e

y

v
4
.1

2
M

in
o
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s

y

v
4
.1

3
M

in
o
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s

y

1
5
/0

9
/1

1
v
4
.1

4

N
e
w

 P
S

1
2
, 

F
2
 a

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
fe

lc
t 

IS
D

S
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t.

 

O
th

e
r 

m
in

o
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
.

Y

1
4
/1

1
/1

1
v
1
4
.1

5
A

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 P

S
1
2
 C

O
4

Y

0
7
/1

2
/1

1
v
4
.1

6
A

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 F

1
3

Y

0
9
/0

2
/1

2
v
4
.1

7
A

m
m

e
n
d
e
d
 P

O
2
 

Y

0
1
/0

3
/1

2
v
4
.1

8
M

in
o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s

y

0
1
/0

4
/1

2
v
4
.1

9
U

p
d
a
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

y

3
0
/0

5
/1

2
v
4
.2

0
N

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d

y

A
p

p
ro

v
a
ls

T
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
s
 t

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
ls

.

N
a
m

e
S

ig
n

a
tu

re
T

it
le

D
a
te

 o
f 

Is
s
u

e
V

e
rs

io
n

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

Page 18



R
IR

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

S
te

p
h
e
n
 P

e
n
n
y

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

T
h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
:

N
a
m

e
T

it
le

D
a
te

 o
f 

Is
s
u

e
V

e
rs

io
n

a
ll 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t 

b
o
a
rd

A
ll 

le
a
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

A
u
th

o
r:

S
. 

P
e
n

n
y

V
e
rs

io
n
:

s
e
e
 v

e
rs

io
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
b
o
v
e

R
e
v
is

io
n
 N

o
.

s
e
e
 v

e
rs

io
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
b
o
v
e

S
ta

tu
s

li
v
e

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

Page 19



P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 G
O

A
L

 &
 O

B
J
E

C
T

IV
E

S

G
o
a
l

th
a
t 

w
il

l 
a
ll

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 t
o

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
li

a
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 W

A
G

 N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

O
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 

1
. 
L
A

S
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
: 

T
o
 p

ro
c
u
re

 w
a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
/o

r 
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 m
a
n
n
e
r 

th
a
t 

e
n
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

s
' 
lo

n
g

 t
e

rm
 

A
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s

L
A

S
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

2
. 
T

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 t

re
a
tm

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

.

3
. 
F

u
n
d
in

g
: 

T
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t.

4
. 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t:

 T
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 

a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

re
g
im

e
, 

a
s
 r

e
c
o
n
g
in

s
ie

d
 b

y
 O

G
C

 e
tc

, 
w

it
h
 g

o
o
d
 g

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
, 

e
x
p
lic

it
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
, 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 o

f 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e

 r
is

k
 m

in
im

is
a
ti
o
n
.

5
. 
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

: 
T

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 a

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
e
x
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 (
W

A
G

, 
P

U
K

, 
P

u
b
lic

, 
e
tc

) 
to

 s
h
a
p
e
 a

n
d

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

o
f 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

6
. 
In

te
rn

a
l 
S

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

: 
T

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

in
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 a
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
ly

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 i
m

p
a
c
ts

 o
f 

w
a
s
te

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 t
h
e
ir
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
v
e
r 

it
s
 t

e
rm

.

7
.

V
a
lu

e
: 

T
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
o
ro

u
g
h
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 (

b
y
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

) 
o
f 

a
n
 a

d
e
q

u
a

te
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
(s

).

8
. 
A

 s
in

g
le

 c
o
m

m
o
n
 g

a
te

 f
e
e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 p

o
in

t 
o
f 

re
c
e
ip

t 
fo

r 
a
ll 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

T
o

 p
ro

c
u

re
 a

 l
o

n
g

 t
e
rm

 w
a
s
te

 m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

to
 t

re
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 

w
a
s
te

 f
in

e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 f

iv
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

Page 20



R
IR

 4
.1

9
R

is
k
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

W
h
o
 i
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g

N
o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e
 (

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
)

W
h
o
 w

ill
 

M
a
n
a
g
e

Im
p
a

c
t

L
'h

o

o
d

O
v
e
r

a
ll

F
5

T
h
e
 b

id
 p

ri
c
e
s
 

a
re

 o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 

th
e
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 

e
n
v
e
lo

p
e

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

4
4

1
6

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

p
ri
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
in

g
 w

it
h
 

W
G

 /
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 c

o
ts

 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

s
e
n
s
ib

le
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
. 

A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 t

e
s
ts

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 O

B
C

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d

P
D

H
ig

h
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 b

y
 

a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

u
n
 

u
n
d
e
r 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 d

ia
lo

g
u
e
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e
 d

o
w

n
 

c
o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

IS
O

S
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
lo

w
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

B
id

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

t 

IS
D

S
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
in

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

P
D

4

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 

n
o
t 

b
id

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

p
re

s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 "

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 

N
e
u
tr

a
l"

P
D

E
n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

5

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 

n
o
t 

b
id

 a
s
 v

o
lu

m
e
s
 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 a
re

 t
o
o
 

s
m

a
ll

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

G
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

2
1

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 a
re

 

n
o
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 r

a
il 

b
a
s
e
d
 

tr
a
n
s
p
o
rt

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
.

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

R
a
il 

b
a
s
e
d
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 b

e
c
o
m

e
s
 u

n
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 o
r 

p
a
rt

ia
lly

 u
n
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

.

3
4

1
2

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 
J
o
in

t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

t 
it
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
2
, 

it
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 s

e
e
 i
f 

k
e
y
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 r
a
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

s
e
c
u
re

d
. 

In
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

lit
tl
e
 o

r 

n
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 m
a
y
 d

e
c
id

e
 t

o
 r

e
v
e
rt

 t
o
 

a
 r

o
a
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
.

P
D

3
3

9
S

e
p
-1

2
S

e
p
-1

2
N

e
w

 r
is

k

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 

P
1
3

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ic

a
l

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 

a
re

 n
o
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
a
b
le

w
it
h
in

 L
A

S
 

in
fr

a
c
ti
o
n

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s

L
A

's
 f

a
c
e
 i
n
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

in
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
la

n
d
fi
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e

4
4

1
6

O
B

C
 m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 t

h
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ir
ty

 c
a
n
 m

e
e
t 

L
A

S
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
 i
f 

th
e
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
" 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 

d
e
liv

e
rd

 t
o
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

. 
A

n
y
 

u
n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
c
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
is

 "
fr

o
n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

re
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 a

n
y
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

L
A

S
  

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s
 

w
ill

 l
ie

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
id

iv
u
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 S
e
e
 a

ls
o
 r

is
k
 W

1

P
a
rt

n
e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ti

e
s

P
ro

c
u
rm

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

is
 

d
lie

v
re

d
 i
n
a
 t

im
le

y
 m

a
n
n
e
r 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
la

te
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 

w
a
s
te

 t
re

a
te

m
tn

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

in
m

is
e
d
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

U
p
d
a
te

d
 w

a
s
te

 f
lo

w
 

m
o
d
e
lli

n
g
 d

e
m

o
s
n
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 d

a
te

s
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

le
a
d
 t

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

L
A

S
 e

x
p
o
s
u
re

 t
o
 p

a
rn

te
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

C
lo

s
u
re

D
a
te

R
is

k
 /

 I
s
s
u
e
 (

i.
e
.:

 

T
h
re

a
t 

to
 t

h
e
 

P
ro

je
c
t)

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

ID

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
a
ft

e
r

Im
p
ln

D
a
te

R
e
v
ie

w

D
a
te

Page 21



R
IR

 4
.1

9
R

is
k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e

x
p

la
n
a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

W
h
o
 i
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
N

o
t 
in

 P
la

c
e
 (

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
)

W
h
o
 w

ill
 

M
a
n
a
g
e

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll

P
o

li
c
y
 &

 r
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 R

is
k
 –

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 W

G
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 /

 r
e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

P
O

1

W
G

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
u
e
 t
o
 W

G
 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 /
 b

u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 l
e
s
s
 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
n
d
 e

a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

5
4

2
0

P
ro

je
c
t 
T

e
a
m

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

W
G

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 l
o
b
b
y
 a

t 
m

in
is

te
ri
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
if
 

th
e
re

 a
re

 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

re
d
u
c
e
d

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n
g
o
in

g
F

e
b
-1

2

1

P
O

2

W
G

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
p
o
lic

y
 

a
n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 c

h
a
n
g
e

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 

in
a
p
p

ro
p
ri
a

te
4

5
2
0

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 W

G
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
. 
T

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
te

a
m

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 

a
n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

B
 a

n
d
 J

o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
) 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
s
u
c
h
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
n
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 W
G

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 h

o
w

 a
n
y
 

s
u
c
h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 r
e
la

te
d
 t
o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 g

ro
w

th
 r

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

m
a
y
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
F

e
b
-1

2

W
G

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
lM

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
S

e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 (

M
S

P
) 

th
a
t 
th

e
y
 

m
a
y
 a

d
o
p
t 
a
 w

a
s
te

 m
in

im
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
M

S
W

 w
it
h
 a

 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

g
ro

w
th

 r
a
te

 (
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
) 

o
f 
 -

1
.2

%
 p

a
. 
 T

h
e
 W

G
 M

S
P

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
 t
a
k
e
 

a
n
y
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
in

d
iv

id
u
a
l 
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 H
H

 o
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

g
ro

w
th

 r
a
te

s
. 
T

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 

W
G

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 f

re
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 

fu
tu

re
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 r

is
k
 i
s
 n

o
w

 m
o
d
e
ra

te
d
. 

W
G

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 W

a
s
te

 H
e
ir
a
rc

h
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 

v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
te

a
m

 a
s
 h

e
lp

fu
ll 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

to
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 h
o
w

 a
n
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 

c
o
m

e
s
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 r
a
n
k
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

w
a
s
te

 h
e
ir
a
rc

h
y
.

2

P
O

4

C
h
a
n
g
e

 i
n

 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 

o
r 

g
u

id
a
n
c
e
 e

it
h
e
r 

a
t 

E
u

ro
p
e
a
n
, 

N
a

ti
o

n
a
l 

o
r 

R
e
g

io
n
a
l/
L
o
c
a
l 

le
v
e
l

C
o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 r

e
v
is

it
 

o
f 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n

 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

L
A

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

c
o
s
ts

4
5

2
0

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 W

G
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
.

P
D

L
o
b
b
y
 W

G
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 

W
L
G

A
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

P
D

 
4

3
1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

 h
a

v
e
 n

o
w

 c
la

ri
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
IB

A
 

(B
o
tt

o
m

 a
s
h
) 

s
o
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. 

T
h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 w
ill

 

re
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 n

o
w

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 (

ju
ly

 2
0
1
2
) 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
u

tr
e
 p

la
n
 t

o
 s

e
e
 h

o
w

 a
ff

e
c
ts

 o
v
e
ra

ll 
ri
s
k
s
.

3

F
in

a
n

c
e
 &

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

il
it

y

F
1
5

P
a

rt
n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

fa
il 

to
 m

a
k
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 l
e
v
e
ls

 t
h
a

t 

a
re

 r
e
q

u
ir
e
d

F
a

ilu
re

 t
o
 m

e
e

t 
W

G
 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n
d

 c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 

w
a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
.

4
4

1
6

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

p
la

n
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 f
ro

n
t 
e
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

 a
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 W

a
le

s
 t
o
 e

n
te

r 
in

to
 a

 "
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
" 

w
h
e
re

 W
G

 w
ill

 o
ff
e
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 L

a
s
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 "

fr
o
n
t 
e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

4

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e

x
p

la
n
a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

W
h
o
 i
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
N

o
t 
in

 P
la

c
e
 (

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
)

W
h
o
 w

ill
 

M
a
n
a
g
e

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 &
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

 –
 f

a
il

u
re

 t
o

 p
ro

a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 e
n

g
a
g

e
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 s

ta
k
e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 t
o

 d
e

la
y

s
 a

n
d

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
.

C
O

4

P
re

s
s
u
re

 f
ro

m
 l
o
b
b
y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
/p

u
b
lic

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
.

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
/s

it
e
 h

a
s

to
 b

e
 s

o
u
g
h
t,
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

, 

d
e
la

y
s
 t
o
 p

ro
je

c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 
e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

L
A

S
 c

o
s
ts

, 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n

4
5

2
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 d

ra
ft
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 d

ra
ft
 f
o
rm

 b
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

g
ro

u
p
. 
T

o
 b

e
 "

liv
e
" 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 u
p
d
a
te

d
 

w
h
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

P
M

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

it
e
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
D

4
4

1
6

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
e
rs

' e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 
to

 b
u
ild

 o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
.

5

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

  
-a

b
il

it
y
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 s

u
c

c
e
s

s
fu

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
e

rm
it

ti
n

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 f

o
r 

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

P
S

5

S
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t 
d
e
la

y
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
c
u
re

d

5
3

1
5

P
ro

je
c
t 
te

a
m

 h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 s

it
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 w

a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 

s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
fa

c
ili

ty
(s

)

P
D

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

s
u
it
a
b
le

 n
e
w

 s
it
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 .

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

6

P
S

1
4

T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 
is

s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

d
ra

ft
 C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 

S
e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 (

C
IM

) 
b
y
 W

G
 

h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t
o
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
n
in

ty
 a

s
 t
o

th
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 

(R
W

P
).

  
T

h
u
s
 t
h
e
 R

W
P

 

m
a
y
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 

w
e
ig

h
t 
in

 d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

w
a
s
te

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 
A

 p
o
lic

y
 

v
a
c
c
u
m

 m
a
y
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 e
x
is

t 

if
 t
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 

W
G

.

U
n

s
u

c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll

p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

4
4

1
6

P
ro

je
c
t 
te

a
m

 a
n
d
 n

o
rt

h
 w

a
le

s
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t
e
a
m

 e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 W

G
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
is

s
u
e
d
 v

e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 S
e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 (

C
IM

) 
d
o
e
s
 

n
o
t 
le

a
v
e
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 "

p
o
lic

y
 v

a
c
u
u
m

".
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l 

P
la

n
in

g
 t
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 W

G
 p

la
n
in

g
 t
e
a
m

s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 

W
G

 W
a
s
te

 P
o
lic

y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

a
m

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

ra
ft
 C

IM

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

's
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 d

ra
ft
  

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 S
e
c
to

r 

P
la

n
 (

C
IM

) 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
R

W
P

's
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

u
t 
w

it
h
 n

o
 

in
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t
o
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
te

a
m

 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

IM
's

 p
u
b
ilc

ia
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 d
e
la

y
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
e
a
rl
y
 

2
0
1
2
.

7

W
a

s
te

s

W
3

C
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 i
s
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 (

p
o
o
r 

d
a
ta

, 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
, 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
s
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 i
s
 

b
e
lo

w
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o

m
p
lia

n
c
e

 c
o
s
ts

3
5

1
5

W
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 t
o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a
re

d
 a

t 
C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

D
ia

lo
g
u
e
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
. 
 A

ll 
W

a
le

s
 W

a
s
te

 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 W

G
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 W

R
A

P
 s

tu
d
y
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 g
o
o
d
 d

a
ta

 s
e
t.
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 t
e
s
te

d
 

a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

to
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

w
a
s
te

s
 w

it
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

3
4

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

8

P
E

1

M
a
rk

e
t/
o
u
tl
e
t 
is

 n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

o
u
tp

u
ts

 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 f
a
c
ili

ty
(s

)

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

, 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

la
n
d
fi
ll 

v
o
id

4
4

1
6

E
n
s
u
re

 m
a
rk

e
t 
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 

o
f 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

9

R
e
v
ie

w
 D

a
te

R
is

k
 /
 I
s
s
u
e
 (

i.
e
.:
 T

h
re

a
t 
to

 

th
e
 P

ro
je

c
t)

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 a

ft
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
R

e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 a

ft
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

Im
p
ln

 D
a
te

R
e
v
ie

w
 D

a
te

C
lo

s
u
re

 D
a
te

ID

C
lo

s
u
re

 D
a
te

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

ID
R

is
k
 /
 I
s
s
u
e
 (

i.
e
.:
 T

h
re

a
t 
to

 

th
e
 P

ro
je

c
t)

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d

Im
p
ln

 D
a
te

Page 22



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
la

n
a
to

ry
 n

o
te

s

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll
A

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 P

la
c
e

W
h
o
 i
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
in

g
N

o
t 

in
 P

la
c
e
 (

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
)

W
h
o
 w

ill
 

M
a
n
a
g
e

Im
p
a
c
t

L
'h

o
o
d

O
v
e
ra

ll

P
o

li
c
y
 &

 r
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 R
is

k
 –

 C
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 W

G
 o

b
je

c
ti

v
e
s
 /

 r
e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s

P
O

1

W
G

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
r t

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 W

G
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 /

 b
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts
 i
n
 t

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
e
c
o
m

e
 l
e
s
s
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

 f
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
n
d
 e

a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

5
4

2
0

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
e
a
m

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

W
G

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 l
o
b
b

y

a
t 

m
in

is
te

ri
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
if
 t

h
e
re

 

a
re

 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
d
u
c
e
d

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

1

P
O

2

W
G

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 

c
h
a
n
g
e

P
ro

je
c
t 

is
 n

o
w

 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

4
5

2
0

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 

W
G

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
. 

T
h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 

(a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

B
 a

n
d
 

J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
) 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

s
u
c
h
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

W
G

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
s
 h

o
w

 a
n
y
 

s
u
c
h
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

g
ro

w
th

 r
a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s

m
a
y
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

to
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

 h
a
v
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

fi
n
a
l 
M

u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
S

e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 

(M
S

P
) 

th
a
t 

th
e
y
 m

a
y
 a

d
o
p
t 

a
 

w
a
s
te

 m
in

im
is

a
ti
o
n
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

M
S

W
 w

it
h
 a

 n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 g

ro
w

th
 

ra
te

 (
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
) 

o
f 

 -
1
.2

%
 p

a
.

T
h
e
 W

G
 M

S
P

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

 t
a
k
e
 

a
n
y
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 H
H

 o
r 

p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 g

ro
w

th
 r

a
te

s
. 

T
h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 f

ro
m

 W
G

 

th
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 f

re
e
 t

o
 

m
a
k
e
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 

a
b
o
u
t 

fu
tu

re
 w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 r

is
k
 

is
 n

o
w

 m
o
d
e
ra

te
d
. 

W
G

 h
a
s
 

n
o
w

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 W

a
s
te

 H
e
ir
a
rc

h
y
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 

v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 

a
s
 h

e
lp

fu
ll 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 

h
o
w

 a
n
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
m

e
s
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 r
a
n
k
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
s
te

 

h
e
ir
a
rc

h
y
.

2

P
O

4

C
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
 o

r 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 e

it
h
e
r 

a
t 

E
u
ro

p
e
a
n
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
r 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l/
L
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l

C
o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 r

e
v
is

it
 

o
f 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

L
A

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

c
o
s
ts

4
5

2
0

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 

W
G

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
.

P
D

L
o
b
b
y
 W

G
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 

W
L
G

A
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

P
D

 
4

3
1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 c
la

ri
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
IB

A
 

(B
o
tt

o
m

 a
s
h
) 

s
o
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
lih

o
o
d
 

o
f 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

th
is

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
. T

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 w
ill

 r
e
v
ie

w
 t

h
e
 n

o
w

 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 (

ju
ly

 2
0
1
2
) 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
u
tr

e
 

p
la

n
 t

o
 s

e
e
 h

o
w

 a
ff

e
c
ts

 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
ri
s
k
s
.

3

P
O

5

W
G

 f
a
il 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

c
la

ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s

D
e
la

y
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

3
4

1
2

K
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 

W
G

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
.

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 r

is
k
 –

 c
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

n
g

 c
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 
te

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 /

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

S
R

 1

A
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 a

n
y
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

a
s
te

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

r 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 /

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 b

y
 a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
4

1
6

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 M

W
M

S
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

Im
p
a
rt

ia
l 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

(b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 W

G
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

).
 M

u
lt

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
p
u
t 

to
 t

h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

O
n
g
o
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 o

n
 n

e
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
, 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

a
d
o
p
te

d
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 a

 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 

n
e
u
tr

a
l 
p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
M

 &
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
o

li
ti

c
a
l

R
e
s
id

u
a
l 
ri
s
k
 a

ft
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

ID
E

N
T

IF
Y

IN
G

 T
H

E
 R

IS
K

 o
r 

IS
S

U
E

M
A

N
A

G
IN

G
 T

H
E

 R
IS

K
 o

r 
IS

S
U

E

H
o
w

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
lle

d
Im

p
ln

 D
a
te

R
e
v
ie

w
 D

a
te

C
lo

s
u
re

 D
a
te

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

C
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e

R
is

k
 /

 I
s
s
u
e
 (

i.
e
.:

 T
h
re

a
t 

to
 t

h
e

P
ro

je
c
t)

ID

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 23



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

A
P

1

M
u
lt
i-
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 A
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 

le
a
d
s
 t

o
 p

ro
tr

a
c
te

d
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

.

E
n
d
 d

a
te

 n
o
t 

m
e
t.

  
L
A

S
 

p
e
n
a
lt
y
 r

is
k
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
.

3
3

9

P
ro

je
c
t 

P
la

n
 d

e
ta

ili
n
g
 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

O
B

C
 A

p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 o

u
t 

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
O

ff
e

r

o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
rm

 p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 i
n
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
. 

IA
A

 

s
e
ts

 o
u
t 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
d
 

m
a
tt

e
rs

.

P
M

3
2

6
o
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

A
P

2

D
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

is
 m

u
lt
i 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

S
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
is

 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 m

u
lt
i-

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

(C
a
b
in

e
t 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
)

4
3

1
2

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 (

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

) 
fr

o
m

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 s

h
a
ll 

b
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 b

id
s
 

P
D

4
2

8
u
ly

 -
 A

u
g
 2

0
1

M
a
y
-1

2

A
P

4

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
o
lit

ic
a
l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
it
h
in

 o
n
e
 o

r 

m
o
re

 o
f 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

o
s
ts

, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

p
re

s
s
u
re

, 
th

re
a
t 

to
 

V
F

M
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
, 

o
r 

to
ta

l 

a
b
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t

4
3

1
2

IA
A

 s
e
ts

 o
u
r 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

a
rr

a
n
g
m

e
n
ts

..
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 

b
ri
e
fi
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 -

 o
ff

e
re

d
 

p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 b
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 

a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

. 
 O

n
g
o
in

g
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 k

e
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
a
ra

m
e
te

rs
.

L
e
a
d
 c

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
,

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o
a
rd

m
e
m

b
e
rs

(l
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

)

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

A
P

5
C

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 a

 

C
o
u
n
c
il

M
a
jo

r 
fu

n
d
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s

4
3

1
2

O
B

C
 h

a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n
d
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

L
e
a
d
 c

h
ie

f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
,

P
ro

je
c
t 

B
o
a
rd

m
e
m

b
e
rs

(l
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

fo
r 

e
a
c
h
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

)

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

A
P

6
L
o
c
a
l 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

re
-

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

C
o
n
fu

s
io

n
 a

n
d
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
4

4
1
6

T
o
 b

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 i
f 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
 

p
ro

s
p
e
c
t 

o
c
c
u
rs

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
e
ri
o
d

T
B

C
4

2
8

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

J
o

in
t 

W
o

rk
in

g
 –

 o
n

e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 e
x
it

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

J
W

1

O
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

L
A

's
 

w
it
h
d
ra

w
 d

u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

N
e
w

 O
J
E

U
 n

o
ti
c
e
 h

a
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

p
la

c
e
d

5
2

1
0

IA
A

 1
 s

ig
n
e
d
 b

y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

s
h
o
w

s
 c

le
a
r 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
s
 o

f 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 l
e
a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

ft
e
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
.

M
O

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

F
in

a
n

c
e
 &

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

il
it

y

F
1

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
B

u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

fi
le

 l
e
a
d
s
 t

o

u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 s

u
rp

lu
s

S
u
rp

lu
s
 i
s
 a

b
s
o
rb

e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
-

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d

3
2

6

F
in

a
n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

to
 b

e
 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 t

e
a
m

. 

P
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
. 

 P
D

 h
a
s
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
u
d
g
e
t 

p
ro

fi
le

. 
P

D
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 

m
a
n
a
g
e

P
D

3
1

3
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

F
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
e
la

y
s
 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 

(d
u
e
 t

o
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n

t

p
ro

c
e
s
s
)

L
A

's
 s

e
e
k
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g

o
r 

w
it
h
d
ra

w

1
2

2

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
s
 

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t

P
D

M
a
n
a
g
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
e
la

y
s
 b

y
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
D

3
3

9
J
a
n
-1

0
M

a
y
-1

2

D
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
q
u
e
s
t 

fr
o
m

 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
t 

a
n
d
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t

o
 

th
e
 I

S
D

S
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

 g
iv

e
n
 

(a
p
p
ro

x
 5

 m
o
n
th

s
).

 

T
im

te
ta

b
le

 w
ill

 s
ti
ll 

b
e
 w

it
h
in

 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

 d
e
la

y
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

ty
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 f

o
r 

O
B

C
.

F
3

C
o
m

m
o
d
it
y
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ri
c
e
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
h
a
s
e
s

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e

4
5

2
0

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

p
ri
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 

lia
is

in
g
 w

it
h
 W

G
 /

 L
o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 c

o
ts

 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

s
e
n
s
ib

le
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

te
s
ts

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 O

B
C

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

F
4

L
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

ra
te

s
 v

o
la

ti
lit

y
 b

e
y
o
n
d
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 

le
v
e
ls

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e

3
5

1
5

O
B

C
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
d
e
lle

d
 

to
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 p

ro
fi
le

.
P

D
3

3
9

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 24



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

F
5

T
h
e
 b

id
 p

ri
c
e
s
 a

re
 

o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

4
4

1
6

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

m
a
rk

e
t 

p
ri
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 

lia
is

in
g
 w

it
h
 W

G
 /

 L
o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
te

d
 c

o
ts

 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 a

n
d
 

s
e
n
s
ib

le
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a
d
e
. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

te
s
ts

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 O

B
C

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

ra
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
o
s
ts

 u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d

P
D

H
ig

h
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

d

b
y
 a

c
ti
v
e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

ru
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 d

ia
lo

g
u
e
 

e
n
a
b
lin

g
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 s

e
e
k
 

to
 d

ri
v
e
 d

o
w

n
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

IS
O

S
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

B
id

 p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

t 

IS
D

S
 w

e
ll 

w
it
h
in

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 e

n
v
e
lo

p
e

F
6

P
re

fe
rr

e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
s
 

n
o
t 

b
a
n
k
a
b
le

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

5
3

1
5

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 

th
o
s
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 (
e
.g

. 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
a
n
k
a
b
ili

ty
) 

a
re

 c
a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

b
e
in

g
 

a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 p

ro
v
e
n
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 f

ro
m

 p
ro

v
e
n
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 p

ri
v
id

o
rs

. 

F
7

In
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

d
o
p
te

d

F
a
ilu

re
, 

d
e
la

y
, 

a
n
d
 

c
o
s
t

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 

th
o
s
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 (
e
.g

. 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 )

 a
re

 c
a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

b
e
in

g
 

a
w

a
rd

e
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
3
 

b
id

d
e
rs

 a
t 

IS
D

S
.

F
8

In
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 d
u
e
 

d
ili

g
e
n
c
e
 w

h
e
re

 a
 n

o
n
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d

In
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

c
o
s
t 

a
n
d
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

ri
s
k
 t

o
 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

3
3

9

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 a
d
v
ic

e
 i
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 f

ro
m

 W
G

, 
L
o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
  

a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 s
o
 

th
a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
p
ru

d
e
n
ti
a
l 
b
o
rr

o
w

in
g

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
e
 r

o
u
te

 a
re

 w
e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

F
9

F
o
re

ig
n
 e

x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r

a
te

 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
ly

A
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty

c
o
m

p
ro

m
is

e
d

4
3

1
2

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 

p
ru

d
e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 

(c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 W

G
) 

a
n
d
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

O
B

C
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

F
1
0

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 

in
c
o
rr

e
c
t

R
e
-p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e

5
3

1
5

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 

p
ru

d
e
n
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 

(c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 w

it
h
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 W

G
) 

a
n
d
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
y
 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

O
B

C
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

F
1
3

W
G

 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

e
v
a
p
o
ra

te
s

P
ro

je
c
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 

u
n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

5
3

1
5

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 W
G

 t
h
a
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

a
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

G
w

y
rd

d
. 

O
B

C
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 

a
w

a
rd

 l
e
tt

e
r 

d
e
fi
n
e
s
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
- 

th
is

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

P
D

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

 h
a
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

in
 t

h
e
 

e
v
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

a
n
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 

fa
ils

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 (

o
r 

la
te

r 

lo
s
e
s
) 

R
1
 e

n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

s
ta

tu
s
, 

m
a
y
 b

e
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 

lo
o
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 W

G
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
T

h
e
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
te

a
m

 

a
re

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 a

t 
th

is
 i
s
s
u
e
 t

o
 

s
e
e
 h

o
w

 l
ik

e
ly

 i
t 

is
 t

h
a
t 

a
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 c

o
u
ld

 f
a
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 R

1
 

a
n
d
 i
f 

s
o
 u

n
d
e
r 

w
h
a
t 

c
ir
ic

u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
.

F
1
4

W
G

 s
e
e
k
s
 

u
n
a
c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

V
F

M
 a

t 
F

in
a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 

c
a
s
e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

ta
g
e
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

u
e
 

to
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts

W
G

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

is
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 m

a
k
in

g
 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 

u
n
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

5
3

1
5

O
B

C
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 a

w
a
rd

 l
e
tt

e
r 

d
e
fi
n
e
s
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 f

o
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

fu
n
d
in

g
- 

th
is

 i
s
 

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
.

P
D

L
o
b
b
y
 W

G
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 

W
L
G

A
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
. 

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

F
1
5

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

a
il 

to
 m

a
k
e
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
la

n
s
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

  
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

le
v
e
ls

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

W
G

 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

a
ri
s
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
.

4
4

1
6

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 l
o
n
g
 t

e
rm

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 

p
la

n
s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

 a
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 W

a
le

s
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 

in
to

 a
 "

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
" 

w
h
e
re

 W
G

 w
ill

 o
ff

e
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 L

a
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 "

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

4

A
d

v
is

e
rs

 –
 c

h
a
n

g
e
 i

n
 k

e
y
 p

e
rs

o
n

n
e
l

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 25



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

A
D

 1

K
e
y
 a

d
v
is

o
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
te

a
m

 

le
a
v
e
  

o
r 

a
re

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t

D
e
la

y
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 

fa
m

ili
a
ri
ty

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

b
y
 a

n
y
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

a
d
v
is

o
ry

 s
ta

ff
.

3
3

9

A
d
v
is

o
r'
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
ir
e
c
to

rs
 

to
 k

e
e
p
 a

n
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 

th
e
 

a
d
v
is

o
r 

w
o
rk

. 
C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 

te
a
m

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 

te
s
te

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

. 
O

n
g
o
in

g
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
a
d
v
is

o
r 

s
it
u
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
d
e
q
u
a
te

a
d
v
is

o
r 

c
o
v
e
r 

a
n
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 

o
ft

e
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
li

v
e
ry

P
D

1

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
2

8

T
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 s

u
it
a
b
ly

 

s
tr

e
a
m

lin
e
d
, 

ti
m

e
ly

 a
n
d
 w

e
ll 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 a

d
o
p
te

d
. 

A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 u
s
e
 a

n
d
 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

. 
In

p
u

t

fr
o
m

 W
G

, 
W

P
P

O
 a

n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
.

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

2

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 R

is
k
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

a
s
s
e

d

to
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

A
 r

is
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 

w
a
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 

A
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 m
a
d
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
d
o
p
t 

a
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 

a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

T
h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
ill

 

c
o
n
fo

rm
 t

o
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 f
ro

m
 o

f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 W

G
 /

 

L
o
c
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
. 
A

n
y
 

d
e
rr

o
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 /

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
is

 

s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 

w
it
h
 W

G
/ 

L
o
c
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

b
e
fo

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

ri
s
k
s
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

 3

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
h
e
s
iv

e
n
e
s
s
 o

f

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

IA
A

 s
ig

n
e
d
 &

 G
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 

in
 O

B
C

/ 
IA

A
.

P
D

IA
A

 s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 a

ll 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

4

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

re
s
c
ri
p
ti
v
e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

is
 t

o
 b

e
 

"T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 N

e
u
tr

a
l"

P
D

E
n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

5

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
id

d
e
rs

 d
o
 n

o
t 

b
id

 a
s

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 a
re

 t
o
o
 

s
m

a
ll

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

G
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

u
ll 

IS
D

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 s

o
 s

tr
o
n
g
 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

rs
e
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
io

n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

6

T
o
o
 m

a
n
y
 b

id
d
e
rs

 

c
o
m

e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
n
d
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 d

e
-s

e
le

c
t 

to
 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
h
o
rt

lis
t

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 

c
o
s
ts

3
3

9

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
d
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
id

d
e
rs

 t
o

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
.

P
D

3
1

3
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

M
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

8
 b

id
d
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 

in
v
it
e
d
 t

o
 I

S
O

S
 s

ta
g
e
, 

 3
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 t
a
k
e
n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 

IS
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
. 

2
 t

o
 C

F
T

 s
ta

g
e

P
D

7

T
h
e
 P

re
fe

rr
e
d
 B

id
d
e
r 

d
ro

p
s
 o

u
t 

o
r 

fa
ils

 t
o
 

re
a
c
h
 a

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l/
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l

c
lo

s
e

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
la

y
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 

c
o
s
ts

, 
e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
, 

lo
s
s
 o

f 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 

a
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

in
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

5
2

1
0

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 /

o
r 

a
p
p
e
ti
te

 

fo
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
lo

s
u
re

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 p

re
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 b

id
d
e
r 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t.

 N
o
 m

a
jo

r 
is

s
u
e
s
 t

o
 

b
e
 a

llo
w

e
d
 t

o
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
re

s
o
lv

e
d
 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 b

id
d
e
r.

P
D

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
D

8
O

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

w
o
 f

in
a
l 

b
id

d
e
rs

 d
ro

p
s
 o

u
t

T
h
re

a
t 

to
 V

F
M

, 
p
ri
c
e
 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
a
n
c
e
 o

f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty

e
n
v
e
lo

p
e
, 

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 /

o
r 

a
p
p
e
ti
te

 

fo
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

c
lo

s
u
re

 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 p

re
 f

in
a
l 
te

n
d
e
r 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t.

 W
ill

 s
e
e
k
 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 a

ll 
b
id

d
e
rs

 a
t 

th
is

s
ta

g
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 m

a
jo

r 
is

s
u
e
s
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
D

9

U
ti
lit

y
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
y
 

n
o
t 

b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 t

h
re

a
t 

to
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
, 

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

3
3

9

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 t

a
s
k
e
d
 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 u
ti
lit

y
 

c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 e

a
rl
y
 

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
D

1
0

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

g
o
e
s
 i
n
to

 

liq
u
id

a
ti
o
n
/r

e
c
e
iv

e
rs

h
ip

d
u
ri
n
g
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 

p
h
a
s
e

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
a
s
te

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
in

g
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
s
ts

, 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
to

r 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 -

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

c
o
s
ts

3
3

9

B
id

d
e
rs

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

P
Q

Q
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 r

e
-c

h
e
c
k
e
d
 

a
t 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

P
D

 
3

2
6

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 26



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

P
D

1
1

In
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

p
ro

je
c
t 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 (

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

k
n
o
w

le
d
g
e
/e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e

o
f 

s
ta

ff
/p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

)

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
ts

, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 t
o
 

'r
e
p
a
ir
' 
p
ro

je
c
t,

 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 o

f 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 

V
F

M

3
3

9

P
D

 a
n
d
 P

M
 i
n
 p

o
s
t

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 n

o
m

in
a
te

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t

o
 

b
a
c
k
fi
ll 

th
e
ir
 p

o
s
ts

. 
In

p
u
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

ro
m

 k
e
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

P
D

 h
a
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

in
p
u
t 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
D

1
2

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

a
re

 p
ro

tr
a
c
te

d
 

b
e
y
o
n
d
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
h
a
s
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 r

e
-b

id
, 

p
ri
c
e
 e

s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
, 

lo
s
s
 

o
f 

V
F

M
, 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 

th
re

a
te

n
e
d
, 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
la

y
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
s
ts

.

3
4

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
le

a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
. 

C
le

a
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

rt
ic

u
la

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

b
id

d
e
rs

 a
t 

a
ll 

s
ta

g
e
s
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

N
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 p

o
s
it
io

n
s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 p
re

 

a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 P

ro
je

c
t 

B
o
a
rd

 t
o
 

a
llo

w
 D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 t

e
a
m

 t
o
 g

e
t 

o
n
 

w
it
h
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

m
a
n
n
e
r.

P
D

1
5

In
a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 p
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

d
is

c
ip

lin
e

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 d

e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

L
A

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
, 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
t,

 

in
te

rn
a
l 
s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 

c
o
m

p
la

in

2
2

4

P
D

 a
n
d
 P

M
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

o
s
t.

 P
D

to
 c

h
e
c
k
 t

h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 P
M

 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

In
te

rn
a
l 

a
u
d
it
 t

o
 b

e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t.

 1
s
t 

g
a
te

w
a
ry

 

re
v
ie

w
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 

a
m

b
e
r 

g
re

e
n
. 

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
 

a
n
d
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 b

o
a
rd

 b
y
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

.

F
u
rt

h
e
 W

G
 g

a
te

w
a
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 I

S
D

S
. 

P
D

 t
o
 t

a
k
e
 o

n
 b

o
a
rd

 

a
n
y
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
.

P
D

2
1

2
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
D

1
6

F
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 o

n
 t

im
e

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 d

e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

L
A

S
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
.

3
3

9

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 s
it
e
s
 a

re

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 i
n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
. 

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 

s
it
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

 w
o
rk

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

o
n
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

s
it
e
s
. 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 

to
 t

e
s
t 

b
id

d
e
rs

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

s
.

P
D

2
2

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
D

1
8

O
n
ly

 o
n
e
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 

b
id

d
e
r 

c
o
m

e
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

g
o
in

g
 b

a
c
k
 t

o
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

id
 p

ri
c
e
s
, 

fa
ilu

re
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 

V
F

M
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

4
2

8

P
D

 h
a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 m

a
rk

e
t

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t.

 G
o
o
d
 

fe
e
d
b
a
c
k
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 

b
y
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

b
id

d
e
rs

.
P

D

E
n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
m

e
s
s
a
g
e
 

to
 m

a
rk

e
t.

 

P
D

4
1

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

1
0
 c

o
m

p
a
n
ie

s
 s

u
b
m

it
e
e
d
 

E
O

I.
 1

0
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 P

Q
Q

 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
. 

w
it
h
 8

 p
re

-

q
u
a
lif

y
in

g
. 

 3
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 

in
v
it
e
d
 t

o
 I

S
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
. 

2
 t

o
 b

e
 

in
v
it
e
d
 t

o
 C

F
T

P
D

1
9

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 m

a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 l
im

it
e
d
 

c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

in
d
u
s
tr

y

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
s
ts

 

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

in
fl
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 

re
v
is

it
 m

a
rk

e
t 

to
 

s
e
c
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

n
 

a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

re
p
u
ta

ti
o
n
 d

a
m

a
g
e
d
.

5
2

1
0

G
o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

m
a
rk

e
t 

in
te

re
s
t 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
.

P
D

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

L
o
w

 r
is

k
 -

 h
o
e
w

v
e
r 

ri
s
k
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 c

lo
s
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
P

B
 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d

P
D

2
0

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 a
re

 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
e
 o

r 

m
o
re

 o
th

e
r 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 

h
a
v
e
 g

a
in

e
d
 a

 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 

b
y
 g

a
in

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

a
 

s
it
e
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 b

e
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
ir
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 w
it
h
d
ra

w
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
s
u
e
 c

le
a
r 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 s

it
e
s
. 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

te
a
m

 t
o
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
 s

a
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 

a
p
p
ly

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 

th
a
t 

b
re

a
c
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 

in
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
 P

D
 h

a
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 v

e
rb

a
l 
a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 

fr
o
m

 a
 r

a
il 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
r 

th
a
t 

th
e
ir
 n

e
w

ly
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 s

it
e
 i
n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 

n
o
t 

b
e
 u

s
e
d
 s

o
le

ly
 t

o
 g

iv
e
 

o
n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 a
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
 

s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

 r
a
il 

h
e
a
d
.

P
D

W
ri
tt

e
n
 c

o
n
fi
rm

a
ti
o
n
 g

a
in

e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

it
e
 o

p
e
ra

to
r 

th
a
t 

h
a
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 a

n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 

c
a
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 e

q
u
a
l 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

s
it
e
 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 (

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

to
 a

 

n
o
n
-e

x
c
lu

s
iv

e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 

a
ll 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
n
ts

 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
).

 

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 27



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

P
D

2
1

N
e
tw

o
rk

 R
a
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

a
re

 n
o
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 t

o
 

a
llo

w
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

a
 r

a
il 

b
a
s
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
.

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 e
le

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

R
a
il 

b
a
s
e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s

u
n
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 o
r 

p
a
rt

ia
lly

u
n
d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

.

3
4

1
2

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 

J
o
in

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

t 
it
s
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
, 

it
 

w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

/ 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

to
 s

e
e
 i
f 

k
e
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 r
a
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

s
e
c
u
re

d
. 

In
 t

h
e
 e

v
e
n
t 

th
a
t 

lit
tl
e
 o

r 
n
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
d
 

b
e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

m
a
y
 d

e
c
id

e
 t

o
 r

e
v
e
rt

 t
o
 a

 

ro
a
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 t

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
.

P
D

3
3

9
S

e
p
-1

2
S

e
p
-1

2

P
D

2
2

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 &
 s

ta
k
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 –
 f

a
il

u
re

 t
o

 p
ro

a
c
ti

v
e
ly

 e
n

g
a
g

e
 w

it
h

 k
e
y
 s

ta
k
e
 h

o
ld

e
rs

 l
e
a
d

in
g

 t
o

 d
e
la

y
s
 a

n
d

 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
p

u
b

li
c
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 s
o

lu
ti

o
n

.

C
O

1

M
is

-i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 a

n
d
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
g
e
n
d
a
s
/o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

le
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 a

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 i
n
 

th
e
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

ia
3

3
9

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

G
ro

u
p
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
, 

w
it
h
 a

 

m
e
d
ia

 p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
g
re

e
d
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 

m
e
s
s
a
g
e
.

P
M

P
M

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

C
O

2

R
is

k
 o

f 
c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 t

o
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 i
f 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
p
u
t 

to
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

w
ill

 

u
n
d
e
rp

in
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n

d

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

R
is

k
 o

f 
u
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

r 

ju
d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 i
n
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
s
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
.

4
3

1
2

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 5

 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

h
e
ld

 d
u
ri
n
g
 J

u
ly

- 
S

e
p
 2

0
1
0
 t

o
 g

e
t 

in
p
u
t 

in
to

 

th
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

.

P
M

P
M

4
2

8

J
u
l-
1
0

M
a
y
-1

2

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

e
fo

re
 I

T
P

D
 

is
s
u
e
d
. 

R
is

k
 c

a
n
 n

o
t 

th
e
re

fo
re

b
e
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

m
it
ig

a
te

d
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 r
is

k
 o

f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 v

e
ry

 l
o
w

 

s
ti
ll 

re
m

a
in

s
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
is

k
 

c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 c

lo
s
e
d
.

C
O

3

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

w
it
h
in

 O
B

C
 c

o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t

o
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.

 A
s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
(s

) 

a
n
d
 /

o
r 

 j
u
d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 m

a
y
 

n
o
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 i
f 

e
a
rl
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
 n

o
t 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
 a

ff
e
c
te

d

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
.

R
is

k
 o

f 
u
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

r 

ju
d
ic

ia
l 
re

v
ie

w
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 i
n
a
b
ili

ty
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
s
 p

ro
c
u
re

d
.

4
3

1
2

"D
ro

p
 i
n
" 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 

th
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 

S
it
e
. 

C
o
n
ta

c
t 

m
a
d
e
 w

it
h
 k

e
y

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 S

it
e
.

P
M

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 

a
ro

u
n
d
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
 (

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
s
 i
f 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
) 

a
t 

k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
t.

P
M

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

C
O

4

P
re

s
s
u
re

 f
ro

m
 l
o
b
b
y
 

g
ro

u
p
s
/p

u
b
lic

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 

p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
.

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
/s

it
e
 h

a
s
 

to
 b

e
 s

o
u
g
h
t,

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

, 

d
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
s
ts

, 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

C
o
u
n
c
ils

 r
e
p
u
ta

ti
o
n

4
5

2
0

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

d
ra

ft
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 d

ra
ft

 

fo
rm

 b
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 

O
ff

ic
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
. 

T
o
 b

e
 "

liv
e
" 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

.

P
M

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 s

it
e
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u

e

d
u
ri
n
g
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
D

4
4

1
6

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
e
rs

' 

e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 a

tt
e
m

p
t 

to
 

b
u
ild

 o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
.

5

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

s

T
5

K
e
y
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 n

o
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

P
la

n

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
p
ro

je
c
t 

to
 b

e
 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 o

r 
d
e
p
e
n
d
a
b
ili

ty
 

is
s
u
e
s

3
2

6

L
o
c
a
l 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 e

x
p
e
rt

s
 

to
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

P
D

P
D

3
1

3
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e
s
s
 

P
1
0

D
if
fe

ri
n
g
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

fr
o
m

 b
id

d
e
rs

 l
e
a
d
s
 t

o
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t

2
2

4

D
if
fe

re
n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 

to
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

P
D

P
D

2
2

4
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
1
2

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
lly

 v
ia

b
le

la
n
d
fi
ll 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 n

o
t 

o
b
ta

in
e
d
, 

L
A

's
 i
n
c
u
r 

in
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

e
n
a
lt
ie

s
5

3
1
5

L
A

S
 i
n
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

in
e
 p

a
s
s
e
d
 

to
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 T

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

v
ia

b
ili

ty
 s

c
o
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

P
D

P
D

5
1

5
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

A
ll 

3
 I

S
O

S
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

o
 I

S
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
 c

le
a
rl
y
 

m
e
e
t 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

.

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 28



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

P
1
3

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 

o
ff

e
re

d
 a

re
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
a
b
le

 w
it
h
in

 L
A

S
 

in
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s

L
A

's
 f

a
c
e
 i
n
fr

a
c
ti
o
n
 f

in
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
la

n
d
fi
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e

4
4

1
6

O
B

C
 m

o
d
e
lli

n
g
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

th
a
t 

e
a
c
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ir
ty

 

c
a
n
 m

e
e
t 

L
A

S
 a

llo
w

a
n
c
e
s
 i
f 

th
e
y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 "

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
" 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

is
 d

e
liv

e
rd

 t
o

ti
m

e
ta

b
le

. 
A

n
y
 

u
n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
c
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
is

 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

re
 o

u
ts

id
e
 t

h
e
 

s
c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
n
d
 

a
n
y
 s

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

L
A

S

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s
 w

ill
 l
ie

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

in
v
id

iv
u
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

 S
e
e
 a

ls
o
 r

is
k
 

W
1

P
a
rt

n
e
r

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

P
ro

c
u
rm

e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

th
a
t 

is
 d

lie
v
re

d
 i
n
a
 t

im
le

y
 m

a
n
n
e

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
la

te
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
te

m
tn

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 m

in
m

is
e
d
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

U
p
d
a
te

d
 w

a
s
te

 f
lo

w
 

m
o
d
e
lli

n
g
 d

e
m

o
s
n
tr

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 d

a
te

s
 

w
ill

 n
o
t 

le
a
d
 t

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

L
A

S
 e

x
p
o
s
u
re

 t
o
 p

a
rn

te
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
.

P
1
4

B
id

s
 s

c
o
re

d
 b

y
 i
n
e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 

in
te

rn
a
l 
te

a
m

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 i
s
 n

o
t 

th
e
 

m
o
s
t 

a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
o
u
s
 t

e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 o

p
e
n
 t

o
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 b

y
 

u
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
id

d
e
rs

4
3

1
2

B
id

 t
e
a
m

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 b

y
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
ix

 o
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
k
ill

s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

)
P

D
4

2
8

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l,
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

a
d
v
is

o
rs

P
1
5

B
id

s
 s

c
o
re

d
 b

y
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

S
o
lu

ti
o
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
e
t 

lo
c
a
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d

is
 n

o
t 

a
c
c
e
p
te

d
 b

y
 L

A
s

4
3

1
2

B
id

 t
e
a
m

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 b

y
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
ix

 o
f 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
k
ill

s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

)

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l,
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

a
d
v
is

o
rs

P
1
6

O
ff

ic
e
r(

s
) 

a
re

 p
e
rc

e
iv

e
d
 t

o
 

h
a
v
e
 p

re
c
o
n
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
d
e
a
s
 o

f 

th
e
 '
b
e
s
t'
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

L
a
c
k
 o

f 
tr

u
s
t 

o
f 

b
id

d
e
r 

s
e
le

c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 

s
e
le

c
te

d

4
3

1
2

 A
g
re

e
d
 s

c
o
ri
n
g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 a

n
d
 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

.

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

in
p
u
t 

to
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 

M
o
d
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
c
o
re

s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
. 

In
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

's
 

tr
a
n
s
a
c
to

r.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

S
c
o

p
e
 C

h
a
n

g
e
 –

 M
a
te

ri
a
l 

c
h

a
n

g
e
 i

n
 t

h
e
 s

c
o

p
e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

S
C

1
M

a
te

ri
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 

o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d

D
e
la

y
 t

o
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
id

d
e
rs

 w
it
h
d
ra

w

fr
o
m

 p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 

u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

ti
e
s

4
3

1
2

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

in
p
u
t 

o
n
 

d
ra

ft
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

O
B

C
 b

y

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

P
M

P
M

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

e
rm

it
ti

n
g

  
-a

b
il

it
y
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
e
rm

it
ti

n
g

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
 f

o
r 

s
o

lu
ti

o
n

P
S

1

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 i
s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s

R
e
d
u
c
e
d
 C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
 o

n
 b

id

p
ro

c
e
s
s

4
3

1
2

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 S

it
e
 

W
o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

u
p
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
in

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 s

it
e
 

a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

 f
o
r 

a

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 N
o
rt

h
 W

a
le

s
 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 p
la

n
in

g
 t

e
a
m

 

n
o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
S

5

S
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 

c
o
u
n
c
il 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 w

h
ils

t 

s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 a

re
 s

e
c
u
re

d

5
3

1
5

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

s
it
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 

w
a
s
te

 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

fa
c
ili

ty
(s

)

P
D

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

s
u
it
a
b
le

 n
e
w

 s
it
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

lo
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s
 .

P
D

5
3

1
5

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

6

P
S

6

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 o

n
 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 (

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
)

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

L
A

S
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

, 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it

3
3

9

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

/ 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
rs

. 
S

it
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
S

7

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 o

n
 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 f

o
r 

W
T

S
 

s
it
e
s
 r

e
q
u
ri
n
g
 p

la
n
n
in

g

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

L
A

S
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

, 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it

4
4

1
6

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

/ 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

S
it
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 29



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

P
S

8

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 o

n
 

o
b
ta

in
in

g
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
e
rm

is
s
io

n
 (

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 

m
a
in

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

it
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 )

F
a
ilu

re
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 

L
A

S
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

, 

im
p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

w
a
rd

 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it

4
4

1
6

E
a
rl
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 

a
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 m

a
in

 s
it
e
. 

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

/ 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

S
it
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
S

9
P

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

h
a
s
 o

n
e
ro

u
s
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s

S
u
b
-o

p
ti
m

a
l 
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

e
lo

w
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

3
3

9

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

/ 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

/ 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
e
s
. 

S
it
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te

w
o
rk

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

R
is

k
s
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
it
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 n

o
t 
ju

s
t 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

s
it
e
s

P
S

1
0

P
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

n
o
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 e

v
e
n
 a

ft
e
r 

a
p
p
e
a
l.

D
iv

e
rs

io
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

c
o
s
ts

5
3

1
5

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 r

is
k
s
 o

f

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

lik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
a
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
.

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

R
is

k
s
 a

p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

ll 
s
it
e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 b

y
 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 n

o
t 
ju

s
t 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

s
it
e
s

P
S

1
2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

e
rm

it
 

n
o
t 

s
e
c
u
re

d
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

P
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

c
o
s
ts

 e
x
c
e
e
d
 

e
x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
, 

d
e
la

y
s
 

to
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

L
A

S
 p

e
n
a
lt
ie

s

4
3

1
2

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 r

is
k
s
 o

f

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

lik
e
lih

o
o
d
 o

f 
a
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
e
rm

it
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
S

1
3

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll 
b
id

d
e
r 

fa
ils

 t
o
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 

B
e
s
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
a
b
le

 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
O

p
ti
o
n
 

(B
P

E
O

)

U
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

4
4

1
6

T
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 B
P

E
O

 i
n
 L

if
e
 

C
y
c
le

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

(L
C

A
) 

(W
iz

a
rd

) 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

O
B

C
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t,

 a
n
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ry
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
ie

ts
 

a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 

fo
r 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
, 

th
e
re

b
y
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

o
f 

B
P

E
O

A
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 w

il 
b
e
 s

e
t 

u
p
 p

re
 C

F
T

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 t

w
o
 l
a
s
t 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 p

a
rt

ic
ia

p
n
ts

 t
o
 t

e
s
t 

th
e

w
a
y
 t

h
e
y
 w

ill
 s

e
e
k
 t

o
 

d
e
m

e
o
s
n
tr

a
te

 t
h
e
ir
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

B
P

E
O

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

c
o
n
te

x
t.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
S

1
4

T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ra
ft

 

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d

M
a
rk

e
ts

 S
e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 (

C
IM

) 
b
y
 

W
G

 h
a
s
 l
e
d
 t

o
 u

n
c
e
rt

a
n
in

ty
 a

s

to
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 

R
e
g
io

n
a
l 
W

a
s
te

 P
la

n
 (

R
W

P
).

T
h
u
s
 t

h
e
 R

W
P

 m
a
y
 b

e
 g

iv
e
n
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

in
 

d
e
te

rm
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

w
a
s
te

 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
. 

A
 p

o
lic

y
 v

a
c
c
u
m

 m
a
y
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 e
x
is

t 
if
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 W

G
.

U
n
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

ll

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

4
4

1
6

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 n

o
rt

h
 

w
a
le

s
 r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 t

e
a
m

 e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 

w
it
h
 W

G
 o

n
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 f

in
a
l 
is

s
u
e
d
 

v
e
rs

io
n
 o

f 
C

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 

S
e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 (

C
IM

) 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 

le
a
v
e
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 "

p
o
lic

y
 

v
a
c
u
u
m

".
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
P

la
n
in

g
 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 W

G
 p

la
n
in

g
 

te
a
m

s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 w

it
h
 W

G
 

W
a
s
te

 P
o
lic

y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 

s
e
e
k
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

a
m

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 d

ra
ft

 C
IM

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

's
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 d

ra
ft

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
n
d
 M

a
rk

e
ts

 S
e
c
to

r 
P

la
n
 

(C
IM

) 
in

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

R
W

P
's

 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 b

u
t 

w
it
h
 n

o
 

in
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
 a

s
 t

o
 t

im
e
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t.

 T
h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

C
IM

's
 p

u
b
ilc

ia
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n

o
w

 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
e
a
rl
y
 2

0
1
2
.

7

S
it

e
s S

1
S

it
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

a
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 c
o
s
ts

, 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 C

a
p
e
x
 

p
ri
c
e
s
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

th
re

a
t 

to
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty

3
3

9

T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 t

a
s
k
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 s

it
e
 

c
o
n
s
tr

a
in

ts

P
D

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

S
2

S
in

g
le

 s
it
e
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 

fo
r 

re
s
id

u
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ty

R
e
-d

e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 

d
e
la

y
e
d
, 

c
o
s
t,

.e
tc

5
3

1
5

In
it
ia

l 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 s

it
e
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
it
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 

c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

p
ri
o
r 

to
  

a
n
d
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

S
3

O
n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 

th
e
 

s
it
e
s
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
fa

c
ili

ti
e
s

R
e
-d

e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 

d
e
la

y
e
d
, 

c
o
s
t,

.e
tc

4
3

1
2

A
  

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

P
D

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 w

o
rk

 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 30



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

S
4

O
n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 

s
it
e
s
 

n
o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 

W
T

S
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s

D
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

c
o
s
ts

 o
n
 s

o
m

e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

4
3

1
2

A
  

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
it
e
s
 

a
lr
e
a
d
y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
.

P
D

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
a
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 w

o
rk

 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
D

4
2

8
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
a
s
te

s

W
1

A
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fa
il 

to
 r

e
a
c
h
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 b
y
 n

o
t 

d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 

"f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
s
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 

w
a
s
te

, 
th

re
a
t 

to
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
, 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
 i
f 

fa
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

u
n
d
e
r-

s
iz

e
d
 a

n
d
 f

in
e
s
 

a
p
p
lie

d
 b

y
 W

G
 t

o
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

u
n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

a
g
a
in

s
t 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 

ta
rg

e
ts

.

3
4

1
2

In
it
ia

l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

h
e
ld

 o
n
 k

e
y
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 t

o
 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
 r

is
k
 a

n
d
 h

o
w

 c
o
s
ts

 

w
ill

 b
e
 a

s
s
ig

n
e
d
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

th
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

u
n
d
e
r/

 o
v
e
r 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 

w
a
s
te

 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 

o
f 

u
n
d
e
r/

o
v
e
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
/ 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 w

a
s
te

 

p
ro

fi
le

s
.

P
D

O
n
g
o
in

g
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 w

a
s
te

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

o
 t

h
a
t 

to
n
n
a
g
e
 p

ro
fi
le

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f

in
a
lis

e
d
 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 I

S
D

S
 s

ta
g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

la
n
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

W
G

 a
re

 e
n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 W

a
le

s
 t

o
 e

n
te

r 

in
to

 a
 "

c
h
a
n
g
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
" 

w
h
e
re

 W
G

 w
ill

 o
ff

e
r 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 L

a
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 "

fr
o
n
t 

e
n
d
" 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

S
e
e
 F

1
5

W
2

W
a
s
te

 f
lo

w
 m

o
d
e
l 
is

 

in
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

in
c
o
rr

e
c
t 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
-b

id
d
in

g
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
s
ts

, 
d
e
la

y
s
 

to
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 p
o
s
s
ib

ly
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

c
o
s
ts

 (
If

 w
a
s
te

 m
o
re

 

th
a
n
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
),

 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 "

p
u
t 

o
r 

p
a
y
" 

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s
 (

if
 w

a
s
te

 

le
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 p

re
d
ic

te
d
).

3
4

1
2

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
ie

s
 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

d
if
fe

ri
n
g
 

a
s
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
s
 u

s
e
d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
. 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e

w
a
s
te

 f
lo

w
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 m

o
d
if
ie

d

th
ro

u
g
h
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

(u
p
 t

o
 I

S
D

S
).

A
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
e
n
s
it
iv

it
ie

s
 t

o
 b

e

m
o
d
e
lle

d
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 

b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

d
ia

lo
g
u
e
 w

it
h
 

b
id

d
e
rs

.

P
D

T
o
n
n
a
g
e
 p

ro
je

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
v
iw

e
d
 p

re
 C

F
T

 b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 l
a
te

s
t 

d
a
ta

.

P
D

3
3

9
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

h
a
s
 

s
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 w

a
s
te

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 

s
o
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
h
a
s
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 

s
e
e
k
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
3
rd

 p
a
rt

y
 

w
a
s
te

 i
f 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 u
n
d
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
r.

W
3

C
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 

is
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
a
t 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 (

p
o
o
r 

d
a
ta

, 

p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
, 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
)

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 l
e
v
e
l,
 

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

3
5

1
5

W
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 

s
h
a
re

d
 a

t 
C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

D
ia

lo
g
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
.

A
ll 

W
a
le

s
 W

a
s
te

 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 W

G
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 W

R
A

P
 s

tu
d
y
 h

a
s
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

 g
o
o
d
 d

a
ta

 s
e
t.

 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 t

e
s
te

d
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 a

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

a
s
te

s
 

w
it
h
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

3
4

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

8

W
4

P
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 l
e
g
a
l 
d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 

(c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
)

n
o
n
–

M
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
S

o
lid

 

W
a
s
te

s
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 

b
e
c
o
m

e
 t

h
e
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

a
s
te

s
 

m
a
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
c
c
o
m

o
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n

3
2

6

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 W

G
 a

n
d
 U

K
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

P
o
lic

y

P
D

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

P
E

1

M
a
rk

e
t/

o
u
tl
e
t 

is
 n

o
t 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 f
o
r 

o
u
tp

u
ts

 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
(s

)

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
je

c
t 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

, 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 

fo
r 

la
n
d
fi
ll 

v
o
id

4
4

1
6

E
n
s
u
re

 m
a
rk

e
t 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 

d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

9

P
E

2

T
h
e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 f

a
ils

 t
o
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

 t
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

le
v
e
l 
(u

n
re

lia
b
le

 o
r 

p
o
o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
)

E
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 L

A
S

 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 c

o
s
ts

, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 

c
lo

s
e
 f

a
c
ili

ty
, 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
e
fa

u
lt
s
, 

n
e
e
d
 t

o
 m

o
d
if
y
 t

h
e
 

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 C

a
p
e
x

3
3

9

E
n
s
u
re

 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
tr

a
c
k
 

re
c
o
rd

 p
ro

v
e
n
, 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

te
s
t 

o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n

s

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
a
t 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 

e
x
p
lo

re
d
 i
n
 d

e
ta

il 
a
n
d
 w

e
ll 

u
n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
.

P
D

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
w

ill
 h

a
v
e
 

m
a
x
im

u
m

 l
a
n
d
fi
ll 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
. 

If
 m

o
re

 m
a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
re

 l
a
n
d
 

fi
lle

d
 t

h
is

 w
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

t 
c
o
s
t 

to
 

th
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 U

lt
im

a
te

ly
 l
e
a
d

to
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
e
fa

u
lt
 i
f 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

u
jn

d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

n
tr

a
c
to

r P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 31



V
e
rs

io
n
: 

4
.1

9
P

ro
je

c
t 

R
is

k
 I

s
s
u
e
 R

e
g
is

te
r

2
4
/0

7
/1

2

C
1

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
d
e
fa

u
lt

R
e
-p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

5
3

1
5

E
n
s
u
re

 t
ra

c
k
 r

e
c
o
rd

 o
f 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r,
 d

e
liv

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 o

f 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
(a

s
 a

t 
re

a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
re

tu
rn

 t
o
 t

h
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r)
 u

n
d
e
rs

to
o
d
. 

T
h
o
s
e
 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 o

f 
n
o
n
-d

e
liv

e
ry

w
ill

 b
e
 m

a
rk

e
d
  

a
c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

 i
n
 

lin
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

P
D

5
2

1
0

O
n
g
o
in

g
M

a
y
-1

2

K
e
y

P
D

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r

P
M

P
ro

je
c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r

M
O

F
C

C
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 O

ff
ic

e
r

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r

R
IR

Page 32



R
6

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

n
o
t

a
p
p
o
in

te
d

u
s
in

g
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s

P
ro

je
c
t

d
e
la

y
s
 w

h
ils

t 

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t

s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
d

4
1

4

P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 T
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
a
t 

IT
T

 

a
n
d
 L

e
g
a
l 
a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
u
t 

to
 b

e
 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
. 

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 b

u
t 

b
e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
.

T
a
k
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
ts

 a
n
d
 

P
U

K

A
u
g
-0

9

2
7
/0

7
/0

9

H
R

2
 (

e
x
 R

2
)

U
n
c
le

a
r

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

f 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

T
a
s
k
s
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

R
is

k
s
 a

n
d
 

is
s
u
e
s
 n

o
t 

e
s
c
a
la

te
d
.

3
2

6

J
o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

k
e
y
 r

o
le

s
P

ro
je

c
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

it
h
 o

u
tl
in

e
 J

o
b
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o
n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 P

ID

P
D

3
1

3

0
8
/1

0
.0

9
0
7
/0

9
/0

9

A
1
 (

E
X

 P
9
)

C
o
s
t 

o
f 

C
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

to
o
 

H
ig

h

P
ro

je
c
t 

R
e
-

te
n
d
e
re

d

4
4

1
6

O
B

C
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
le

a
d
in

g
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
p
e
c
ts

 

o
f 

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
. 
A

llo
w

 v
a
ri
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

id
 t

o
 

re
m

o
v
e
 e

le
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

ri
n
g
 c

o
s
ts

 d
o
w

n
. 

U
s
e
 o

f 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 D

ia
lo

g
u
e
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 s
o
m

e
 i
te

ra
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 

to
 r

is
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
N

o
v
-0

9
1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(c
lo

s
e
d
 a

s
 i
s
 

a
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f

F
1
3
)

A
2
 (

E
X

 R
4
)

F
u
n
d
in

g
 n

o
t 

P
ro

v
id

e
d

fr
o
m

T
re

a
s
u
ry

P
ro

je
c
t

D
e
la

y
e
d

w
h
ils

t 
c
o
s
ts

 

a
re

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 

o
r 

P
ro

je
c
t 

s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d

4
2

8

O
B

C
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
a
t 

is
 

d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

W
A

G
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

P
D

F
B

C
 (

F
in

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
) 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 .

 N
e
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

p
ro

c
u
re

d
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
O

B
C

.
P

D
4

1
4

O
n
g
o
in

g
N

o
v
-0

9
1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(c
lo

s
e
d
 a

s
 i
s
 

a
 d

u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f

F
1
3
)

 R
1

O
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g

T
e
a
m

a
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t

s

P
ro

je
c
t 

te
a
m

 

u
n
d
e
r

re
s
o
u
rc

e
d

le
a
d
in

g
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

s
lip

p
a
g
e

3
3

9

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 t

e
a
m

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 

s
p
e
c
if
ie

d
. 

In
te

ri
m

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
n
o
w

 

in
 r

o
le

. 
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

in
te

rv
ie

w
s
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
s
e
c
o
n
d
e
e
.

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 n

o
m

in
a
te

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 

a
n
d
 t

o
 b

a
c
k
fi
ll 

th
e
ir
 p

o
s
ts

. 
In

p
u
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

ro
m

 

k
e
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

P
D

 h
a
s
 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 i
n
p
u
t 

s
c
h
e
d
u
le

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

In
d
iv

id
u
a
l

P
a
rt

n
e
r

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

3
2

6
O

n
g
o
in

g
N

o
v
-0

9
1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

P
D

1
1
)

P
S

4

P
la

n
n
in

g

P
e
rm

is
s
io

n

n
o
t 

g
ra

n
te

d
 

a
t 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

S
it
e
s

P
ro

je
c
t

d
e
la

y
e
d

w
h
ils

t

s
u
it
a
b
le

 s
it
e
s
 

a
re

 s
e
c
u
re

d

5
3

1
5

A
lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 S

it
e
(s

) 
to

 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

o
f 

s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
. 

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 

a
d
v
is

o
r 

a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 t

o
 p

ro
je

c
t 

te
a
m

 a
n
d
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
/ 

s
it
e
s
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
t 

u
p
.

P
D

4
2

8

A
u
g
 /

2
0
0
9
 

(c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
)

N
o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

T
7

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

a
l 
A

c
ti
v
is

ts
 

s
e
e
k
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t/

b
u
ild

p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

d
is

ru
p
te

d
3

3
9

P
ro

-A
c
ti
v
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 &

 

in
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

E
A

 a
n
d
 H

IA

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 

o
f 

P
R

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

P
D

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

C
O

4
)

P
3

L
A

S
 R

is
k
 f

o
r 

th
e

c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

d
e
te

rs

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l

b
id

d
e
rs

in
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n

fo
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

4
2

8

A
 r

is
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 

to
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
d
o
p
t 

a
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(T
o
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 

u
n
d
e
r

g
e
n
e
ra

l

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

ri
s
k
s
)

Page 33



S
2

R
D

F

p
ro

d
u
c
e
d

C
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 

s
o
ld

R
D

F
 i
s
 

la
n
d
fi
lle

d
4

2
8

 R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

d
v
is

o
rs

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9
1
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

P
E

1
)

S
3

R
D

F
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

n
o
t

c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t

d
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
fl
o
w

 

o
f 

re
s
id

u
a
l

P
u
rc

h
a
s
e
r 

o
f 

R
D

F
 r

e
je

c
ts

 

lo
a
d
s

4
2

8

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
to

 g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 c

a
lo

ri
fi
c
 v

a
lu

e
 w

it
h
in

 

to
le

ra
n
c
e
 l
im

it
s.

 A
 r

is
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t

o
 

b
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 

in
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 

a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
d
o
p
t 

a
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 

d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

(D
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

P
E

2
)

S
4

L
A

 f
a
ils

 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
ly

re
q
u
ir
e
d

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 o

f 

w
a
s
te

 f
o
r 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

in
v
o
k
e
s

p
e
n
a
lt
y

c
la

u
s
e
 t

o
 

m
e
e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

4
3

1
2

W
a
s
te

 v
o
lu

m
e
s
 s

e
t 

a
t 

m
in

im
u
m

 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 

m
o
n
th

ly
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
w

a
s
te

 a
ri
s
in

g
s
 u

n
ti
l 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

s
ig

n
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

la
ri
ty

. 
A

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

w
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
d
o
p
t 

a
 

c
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9

1
1
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

(D
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

W
1
)

S
5

W
a
s
te

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 n
o
t 

a
s
 E

u
n
o
m

ia
 /

 

A
E

A

C
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

fo
r 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 

/ 
E

fW

2
3

6

W
a
s
te

 c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 d

a
ta

 s
h
a
re

d
 a

t 
C

o
m

p
e
ti
ti
v
e
 

D
ia

lo
g
u
e
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

o
lu

ti
o
n
. 

 A
ll 

W
a
le

s
 W

a
s
te

 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 W

A
G

 

th
ro

u
g
h
 W

R
A

P
. 

 I
n
it
ia

l 
w

o
rk

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
 0

9
.

1
0
/1

/0
9

(D
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

W
3
)

S
6

L
A

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 

m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y

le
a
d
s
 t

o
 

p
e
a
k
s
 a

n
d
 

tr
o
u
g
h
s
 o

f 

s
u
p
p
ly

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t

p
la

n
t 

u
n
a
b
le

 

to
 c

o
p
e
 w

it
h
 

w
id

e

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 

v
o
lu

m
e
s
 /

 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
io

n

3
3

9

L
A

's
 s

ig
n
 L

A
A

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 e
v
e
n
 f

lo
w

 o
f 

m
a
te

ri
a
l 

to
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

  
A

 

ri
s
k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
d
 b

y
 

th
e
 P

ro
je

c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
w

it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 r
is

k
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
d
o
p
t 

a
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
lly

 d
e
liv

e
ra

b
le

 a
n
d
 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 p
o
s
it
io

n
.

P
D

N
o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(T
o
o
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 

a
n
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 

u
n
d
e
r 

W
1
)

P
O

3
 (

e
x
 S

8
)

W
A

G
 w

a
s
te

 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

ta
rg

e
ts

c
h
a
n
g
e

L
o
c
a
l

A
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s

w
ill

 i
n
c
u
r 

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s

re
g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
c
t

4
4

1
6

P
ro

je
c
t 

T
e
a
m

 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 W

A
G

 

a
n
d
 P

U
K

P
D

P
ro

je
c
t 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
to

 k
e
e
p
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 

W
A

G
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
p
o
lic

y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
a
y
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 e

a
rl
y
. 

(S
e
e
 r

is
k
 T

6
).

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

N
W

R
W

T
P

 h
a
s
 l
it
tl
e
 

in
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

W
A

G
 p

o
lic

y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s

P
D

4
3

1
2

O
n
g
o
in

g
N

o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

P
O

2
)

A
P

3
 (

e
x
 T

3
)

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

L
A

 

d
o
e
s
n
't
 s

ig
n
 

In
te

r

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

(I
A

A
)

P
ro

je
c
t

d
e
la

y
e
d

w
h
ils

t

re
v
is

io
n
s
 a

re
 

m
a
d
e
 t

o
 I
A

A
 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t

3
2

6

N
e
w

ly
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk

 o
n
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 l
e
g
a
l 
le

a
d
s

L
P

4
2

8
C

o
m

m
e
n
c
e

J
u
ly

2
0
0
9
,C

o
m

p
le

te
 N

o
v
 2

0
0
9
.

N
o
v
-0

9

1
0
/1

1
/0

9

(d
u
p
lic

a
te

 o
f 

A
P

4
)

Page 34



T
8

O
B

C
 t

im
e
lin

e
 

is
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 i
f 

re
q
u
ir
e
d

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

in
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 

to
n
n
a
g
e
,

fu
tu

re

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 /

 

d
iv

e
rs

io
n

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

(f
ro

n
t 

e
n
d
) 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
s
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 

fu
lly

O
B

C
 i
s
 

d
e
la

y
e
d
 i
f 

m
o
re

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
 t

h
is

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
.

If
 t

h
e
 O

B
C

 i
s
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

w
it
h
o
u
t 

th
is

 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

b
e
in

g
 f

u
lly

 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

,

W
A

G
 m

a
y
 

re
je

c
t

th
e

4
3

1
2

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 t

e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

, 
a
n
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

.

P
D

/P
M

U
n
ti
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

ro
m

 p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

k
n
o
w

 w
h
a
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 w
ill

 

b
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

P
M

4
2

8

N
o
v
-0

9

A
p
r-

1
0

4
0
2
8
2

P
D

1
3

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
/a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

O
B

C

P
o
s
s
ib

le

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
lo

s
s
 

o
f 

W
A

G
 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 

L
A

S
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

in
c
u
rr

e
d

4
3

0

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

ta
s
k
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 W

A
G

 s
u
p
p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

ti
m

e
lin

e
 f

o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

A
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 a
ll 

m
a
d
e
 i
n
 t

im
e
 f

o
r 

s
u
b
m

is
io

n
 o

f 
O

B
C

 t
o
 W

A
G

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

i
4

0
0

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

0

P
D

1
4

D
e
la

y
 i
n
 

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o
n
/a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
o
f 

in
te

r-

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t

P
o
s
s
ib

le

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
lo

s
s
 

o
f 

W
A

G
 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 

L
A

S
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

in
c
u
rr

e
d

3
3

0

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

ta
s
k
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 

a
n
d
 W

A
G

 s
u
p
p
lie

d
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 

ti
m

e
lin

e
 f

o
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te

 

s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 g
iv

e
n
 t

o
 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s

, 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

i
3

0
0

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

0

P
D

1
7

O
B

C

re
je

c
te

d
 b

y
 

W
A

G
 (

d
u
e
 t

o
 

o
m

is
s
io

n
s
,

to
o
 m

u
c
h
 

c
o
m

p
e
ti
ti
o
n

fr
o
m

 o
th

e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
)

P
o
s
s
ib

le

d
e
la

y
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

L
A

S

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

c
o
s
ts

in
c
u
rr

e
d
.

3
3

9

O
B

C
 f

o
llo

w
s
 W

A
G

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
. 

R
e
g
u
la

r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 W

A
G

 a
n
d
 i
n
p
u
t 

fr
o
m

 

P
U

K
 t

ra
n
s
a
c
to

r.

P
D

3
0

0

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

0

P
S

1
1

P
u
b
lic

o
p
p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

te
c
h
n
ic

a
l

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
/p

la
n

n
in

g

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n

in
c
lu

d
in

g

le
g
a
l

c
h
a
lle

n
g
e

D
e
la

y
s
 t

o
 

p
ro

je
c
t

d
e
liv

e
ry

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
,

e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e

L
A

S

p
e
n
a
lt
ie

s
,

a
ff

o
rd

a
b
ili

ty

e
n
v
e
lo

p
e

th
re

a
te

n
e
d
.

4
5

2
0

A
c
ti
v
e
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 p

la
n
.

P
M

4
4

1
6

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

0

C
lo

s
e
d
 -

 

th
is

 i
s
 a

 

d
u
p
lic

a
te

o
f 

C
O

4

Page 35



T
4
b

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

d
e
la

y
s
 l
e
a
d
 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

c
o
s
ts

 (
d
u
e
 t

o
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d

A
p
p
ro

v
a
ls

p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
)

L
A

's
 s

e
e
k
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

r 

w
it
h
d
ra

w

3
3

9

P
ID

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
s
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 t

im
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

k
e
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 p

o
in

ts
.

P
D

P
D

3
3

9

O
n
g
o
in

g

S
e
p
-1

1

4
0
7
8
7

C
L
O

S
E

D

D
u
p
lic

a
te

o
f 

F
2

Page 36



Definition of Risk

High 5 (W) 10 (W) 15 (M) 20 (M) 25 (M) M Mitigate

Medium / 

High
4 (W) 8 (W) 12 (M) 16 (M) 20 (M)

Medium 3 (A) 6 (W) 9 (W) 12 (M) 15 (M) W Watch

Low

/Medium
2 (A) 4 (A) 6 (W) 8 (W) 10 (M)

Low 1 (A) 2 (A) 3 (A) 4 (W) 5 (W) A Accept

Low
Low

/Medium
Medium

Medium / 

High
High

Likelyhood (probability of occurrence)

5 High 75% to 100%

4 Medium / High 50% to 75%

3 Medium 26% to 49%

2 Low / Medium 11% to 25%

1 Low < 10%

Impact (affect on outcome)

5 High Catastrophic

4 Medium / High Critical

3 Medium Concerning

2 Low / Medium Marginal

1 Low Negligible

Impact

L
ik

e
ly

h
o
o
d

Project Risk and Issues Register RIRPage 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted - Not for Publication



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Approval of Previous Minutes
	6 Progress Report (SO Report)
	7 RIR - Risk Status Update (SP Report)
	Item 7 - Risk Register Appendix (E)

	10 Refined ISDS Evaluation Report (SP Report Accompanied by a Presentation by the Project Team and also External Advisors)

